
 

 
 
Notice of meeting of  
 

Health Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
 
To: Councillors Alexander (Chair), Aspden, Fraser, 

Sue Galloway, Simpson-Laing, Sunderland and 
Wiseman (Vice-Chair) 
 

Date: Monday, 29 March 2010 
 

Time: 5.00 pm 
 

Venue: The Guildhall, York 
 

 
A G E N D A 

 
 
 
1. Declarations of Interest   (Pages 3 - 4) 
 At this point Members are asked to declare any personal or 

prejudicial interests they may have in the business on this 
agenda. A list of general personal interests previously declared 
are attached. 
 

2. Minutes   (Pages 5 - 10) 
 To approve and sign the minutes of the last meeting of the 

Committee held on 3 March 2010. 
 

3. Public Participation    
 At this point in the meeting, members of the public who have 

registered their wish to speak regarding an item on the agenda or 
an issue within the Committee’s remit can do so. The deadline for 
registering is 5:00 pm on Friday 26 March 2010. 
 

4. Work Plan 2010   (Pages 11 - 12) 
 Members are asked to review the Committee’s work plan for 

2010.  
 
 
 



 
5. Presentation on Transforming Community Services    
 The Committee have requested an update on progress around 

Transforming Community Services whereby NHS North 
Yorkshire and York (the PCT) divests itself of the provider side of 
the organization. This provider side includes community nursing 
services and mental health services, including inpatient and 
community based services. The Committee previously received 
information on the process around the future provision of mental 
health care at its meeting on 23rd September 2009. 
Representatives of NHS North Yorkshire & York will be in 
attendance at the meeting to give a PowerPoint presentation on 
this subject. 
 

6. Presentation on the Individual Funding Request Panel for 
NHS North Yorkshire and York   

 

 Dr D Geddes is the medical director for NHS North Yorkshire and 
York. He has responsibility for the clinical governance of the 
Individual Funding Request Panel which makes funding 
decisions for patient care that may lie outside national or local 
commissioning policies. Dr Geddes will describe the work the 
panel does, how the panel reaches its decisions, and how the 
patients are supported through the process, from request to 
appeal. 
 

7. Information Report on Women's Low Secure 
Unit, Clifton   

(Pages 13 - 20) 

 This briefing note provides the Committee with information on the 
proposals for a Women’s Low Secure Unit in Clifton. It is for 
information only and a representative of NHS North Yorkshire & 
York will be in attendance at the meeting to answer any 
questions the Committee may have. The role of the Health 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee in the context of this briefing 
note is to comment on service need and not on planning related 
matters. 
 

8. Interim Report of the Childhood Obesity 
Task Group   

(Pages 21 - 100) 

 The purpose of this report is to present members of the Health 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee with information received to 
date on the Childhood Obesity Review. 
 
 



 
9. Urgent Business    
 Any other business which the Chair considers urgent under the  

Local Government Act 1972 
 

    
 Democracy Officer: 

 
Name: Jill Pickering 
Contact Details: 

• Telephone – (01904) 552061 
• Email – jill.pickering@york.gov.uk 

 
 
 

For more information about any of the following please contact the 
Democracy Officer responsible for servicing this meeting  
 

• Registering to speak 
• Business of the meeting 
• Any special arrangements 
• Copies of reports 

Contact details are set out above 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



About City of York Council Meetings 
 

Would you like to speak at this meeting? 
If you would, you will need to: 

• register by contacting the Democracy Officer (whose name and contact 
details can be found on the agenda for the meeting) no later than 5.00 
pm on the last working day before the meeting; 

• ensure that what you want to say speak relates to an item of business on 
the agenda or an issue which the committee has power to consider (speak 
to the Democracy Officer for advice on this); 

• find out about the rules for public speaking from the Democracy Officer. 
A leaflet on public participation is available on the Council’s website or 
from Democratic Services by telephoning York (01904) 551088 
 
Further information about what’s being discussed at this meeting 
All the reports which Members will be considering are available for viewing 
online on the Council’s website.  Alternatively, copies of individual reports or the 
full agenda are available from Democratic Services.  Contact the Democracy 
Officer whose name and contact details are given on the agenda for the 
meeting. Please note a small charge may be made for full copies of the 
agenda requested to cover administration costs. 
 
Access Arrangements 
We will make every effort to make the meeting accessible to you.  The meeting 
will usually be held in a wheelchair accessible venue with an induction hearing 
loop.  We can provide the agenda or reports in large print, electronically 
(computer disk or by email), in Braille or on audio tape.  Some formats will take 
longer than others so please give as much notice as possible (at least 48 hours 
for Braille or audio tape).   
 
If you have any further access requirements such as parking close-by or a sign 
language interpreter then please let us know.  Contact the Democracy Officer 
whose name and contact details are given on the order of business for the 
meeting. 
 
Every effort will also be made to make information available in another 
language, either by providing translated information or an interpreter providing 
sufficient advance notice is given.  Telephone York (01904) 551550 for this 
service. 

 

Agenda AnnexPage 1



 
Holding the Executive to Account 
The majority of councillors are not appointed to the Executive (40 out of 47).  
Any 3 non-Executive councillors can ‘call-in’ an item of business from a 
published Executive (or Executive Member Decision Session) agenda. The 
Executive will still discuss the ‘called in’ business on the published date and will 
set out its views for consideration by a specially convened Scrutiny 
Management Committee (SMC).  That SMC meeting will then make its 
recommendations to the next scheduled Executive meeting in the following 
week, where a final decision on the ‘called-in’ business will be made.  
 
Scrutiny Committees 
The purpose of all scrutiny and ad-hoc scrutiny committees appointed by the 
Council is to:  

• Monitor the performance and effectiveness of services; 
• Review existing policies and assist in the development of new ones, as 

necessary; and 
• Monitor best value continuous service improvement plans 

 
Who Gets Agenda and Reports for our Meetings?  

• Councillors get copies of all agenda and reports for the committees to 
which they are appointed by the Council; 

• Relevant Council Officers get copies of relevant agenda and reports for 
the committees which they report to;  

• Public libraries get copies of all public agenda/reports.  
 

Page 2



HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
 
 

Agenda item I: Declarations of interest. 
 
Please state any amendments you have to your declarations of interest: 
 
Councillor Fraser  Governor of York Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust; 

Member of the retired section of Unison; 
Member of the retired section of UNITE the TGWU 
ACTS section 
Member of York Healthy City Board. 

 
Councillor Simpson-Laing Member of Unison 
 An employee of Relate 
 Works for the Disabilities Trust 
  
Councillor Wiseman  Member of York Healthy City Board. 
  Governor of York Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust. 
 
 
 
 

 
 

  
 
 

Agenda Item 1Page 3



Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank



����������	
�������� ������������������

�������� ������������������ ��!���������������

"���� #�������$%&%�

'�� ����
�
�
�
��������"�����

��!������� ����(��"���)�����*+�,�� ��+�
 !����������+� ��' ��-��������"�
�� �����)����-�����*�
�
����������' ���-����. �
���������!�'���-����. �
/�������� �0���"���'��'��1 ��  ��2���
����������"�0���"���'��'��1 ��  ��2���
�������'!�"��0��� ����������. �������
���.�
���������/��. ���0����.��� '�����
"�22������������0�������,����.���!�����
������2!�������0�������,����.���!�����

�'������ � ��!������� �� '"�����"� !�"�����"�

�
���� ����	
	�����������
�����

�
���3�	��4�	����5���6����6��7	��7���8���9���������8��������:�7���9�	���7��
�	�9	�;�6��7������	������8�����:8��875������8��3������������8��7:��67<�
�
��������	������7�� ����	��6�8�	� 	�799���������7��7���5�	��	������	
�
���9��7��� ,���67����� �	���� 7�� 7� 9�3��� ���3�	� 7�6� �8�� 	�=�����6� �8��
766����������8������8�	�����������7�6��:�6��7	7�����<���
�

���� 	���
�	���	���	
���
��
�
�8���87�	� 	�9�	��6� �8�� 	����� 6�7�8� �����6�	�7�� /7
��	8�	<����3�	��
4��8�6� ��� 9�7�� ��� 	��	6� �8��	� 799	��7����� ��	� /7
1�� 4�	
� 7�6�
���������� ��� �8�� 7��8�	���� �5�	� �7��� ��7	�� 7�6� �8��	� �76����� 7�� 8���
6�7�8<��
�

���� ���������
�
�� ����">� �87�� �8���������� ���������:�� ��� �8������������ 8��6�

���$�"���3�	�$%%?+�7�6�&#�7�6�$%�/7��7	��$%&%�3��
799	�5�6�7�6���:��6�3���8���87�	�7���		���	��	6�<�

�
���� ��������	
�����	�����

�
��� 47�� 	�9�	��6� �87�� �8�	�� 876� 3���� ���� 	�:���	7����� ��� �9�7
� 7�� �8��
������:���6�	��8��������1��'�3���'7	���97����� 8���<�
�

Agenda Item 2Page 5



/�8���7���+��9�
��7��7�	�9	�����7��5������8����6�	�'��9��1�������3������
	��7���������:��67������@�)!967������"���7�� �	5���������	
*<����	���		�6�
��� ����7:������� �8�������3���48��876�3����3���6������8��68��6�48��
876� 7�
�6� �87�� ��6�	��� 3���6� 7�6� 97	��7���� ��:8��6� 9��9��� �8���6� 3��
7���7��6�6��������7����7	�����8��	�8����7��9����3��<��8���876�3����:�5���
7�6�����������8����8�	���6������8�����+�48�8�876�����3�������7�3���	����A�
��
�����8���876����������6�7���� �6�������4��8���7��8�	��47�
<���
�
/�8��4��������� 9����� ���� �87�� �8��� �8���6� 3�� �����7�� 7�3	�76�	� ������ ���
	��7��������3���6+�6��73��6�7�6���6�	���9��9���7�6��8��6������������8����7�6�
��� 7����6��:� ��6�7�� 7�6� 6���7�� 799���������� ����� 6���7��� �	��� �8��	�
8���<������::����6�7�=�����������6��73��������7�6�7�	�=������	����8��'���
��	� 7� 9����6�� ��:8�� 7������ ��� 7���7���:� ��	5���� ��7	�	� ��� 7� 9�	�����
8���<�
�

���� �
����	��������
�
�8�� �87�	� :75�� 7� 5�	37�� �967��� ��� 	��9��� ��� ��:���:� 87�:��� 7�� ��	
�
���9��7�� ��� 	��7����� ��� �8��27
�'7����7�7:�������	��9�7�6�������� �8��
�B�9������97��������57��7���7���<��������	��6��87��8��876�	�=�����6�7�
9	�����7����� �	��� �� � ��	�8� ��	
�8�	�� 7�6� ��	
� 7�� �8��  	������
���������1�� ��B��������:� ��� $?��7	8� ��� �967������3�	�<� � ��� ��7��6�
�87�� 8�� 876� 7���� 	�=�����6� 766�����7�� ����	�7����� ��� 	��7����� ��� 8�4�
87�:��� ��� 8��9��7�� ��	5��� ��5���� 4�	�� 97���6� ����� �8��  	������
���������<�
�
�8��  	������ �����	� ����	��6� �87�� �8�� ���
�� '�3��� �47	������ 7�6�
�������7����� ��9�	�� ��� ��6� ��� ����� 7	�� 4���6� ���� 3�� 757��73��� ��	� �8��
������:� ���$?��7	8� ��� �8���4���6� 3�� ���99�6� ��� �8���7��������:<� 8��
7��������	��6��87��7		7�:������� ��	�7��766�����7��������:� ���/����4���6�
3�������������7���	��8������7��������:�����7
��7��������7�����4����3�	��
����8�����������<�
�
���3�	�� 	���		�6� ��� �8��9	�����7����C�967����������7����7��8��	7����	��
�8�6���6� ��	� �8�� �7�� ������:� 7�6� ��� 5��4� ��� 	����� 87�:��� �8���
��::����6���87��7���7	���	��967����7��3����	��799	�9	�7��<����47��7:	��6�
�87���8����8���6�3��3	��:8����	47	6�����8���7	8�������:<�
�
�� ����">� �87�� �8�� 6	7�����	
�'�7�� 3�� 799	�5�6� ��3;��� ��� �8��

7���6������ 6��7���6� 73�5�� 7�6� �8�� �7�� )�2�*�
������:� 3���:� 8��6� �����6���67�� &?� �7�� $%&%� 7��
@<%%9�<�&<�

�
��� ��>� ��� �967��� �8������������ ��� �8��	���	
�'�7�� ��	� �8��

��	�8����:���7	<�
�
��������=��	�6��
&<�!967����������������	
�'�7�<���
�
�

�
����

�

Page 6



���� ���	���������	����
 ��������!
���
�
�8�� ���������� ����6�	�6� 7� 	�9�	�+� 48�8� 9	�5�6�6� ���3�	�� 4��8� 7��
�967��+�����8��9	�5����������� �6���7����	5���������	
<�
�
�8��	�9�	��6��7���6��8�������4��:>�

•� ���3�	������4�97���������������$%%?C&%�3��=�7	��	�
•� �����0���4�97�������7���:��6����7�6�������
•� "��7�6���	��� �'	��7	���7	��"������	��
•� �7����:�������
•�  �99������'	��7	��"���7�� �	5����
•� ,���	��'�7���

�
��		7�����7���	+�������7���"�	���	�0�'	��7	���7	�+�47�� ���7����67��� ���
9	������ �8�� 979�	� 7�6� 7��4�	� 7��� =��������<�  8�� ����	��6� �87�� �8�	��
4�	��;�����5�	�@%%%�6���7��97�������	�:����	�6�����8����	
�7	�7�7�6��87���8��
'���4�	�� ����8�	����:������ ���9	��	�� ��5�������� ����� �6�������� ��� �8��
7	�7<�  8�� =��������6� �8�� ����� ����73��� ��7����� ��	� �����:� 766�����7��
6��������7�6�����	��6��87���8�	��799�7	�6����3��7����6�	9	�5����������8��
���3� 7	�7<�  8�� 7���� ����	��6� �87�� ��� 97������� 876� 7��� �9��7�� ���6��
�8��� ���6� �6������� 7� 97	����7	� 6���7�� 9	7���� 8�4�5�	� �8�	�� ���6� 3��
766�����7��47����:��������5��5�6<��
�
���3�	��	���		�6�����8��7997	������:����7���6���	��	7����� ����8�� ���:�8����
�����97��������9������� �8��47����:� ����<�,	���9	�5����� 	�9�	��� ���799�7	�6�
�87��7������	�=��	��:�7��� �6�������876����47���3��4����&�7�6�D�����8��
3��� �87�� �8�� �7;�	���� ��4� 876� ��� 47��� �5�	� &$� ����8�<� ��		7���� �7���	�
����	��6��87���8��4���6��B7������8���6��	�97���7�6��7	�����8��6��7����
4��8��8�� 	�����������	+���	��	��7�����������3�	�<�&<��
�
���3�	�� 7���� =��������6� �8�� 7�	7�� ��� �8�� 47����:� ����+� 7�� ��� 47��
��6�	����6� �87��������7����������799�7	�6���� �8�� �����7��8��:8� �8���876�
3����7���7��6�6�������<����47������	��6��87���5�	���������8��47����:������
47���8�	�������3�����7��6����7��	�7����8��	��		����9��������7�6��87���8��
�����47�� ���3��9���������� ����7
�� �����8���	��7����3���7�6� �������	��
�87���������6�5��4����	�9�������������<�
�
��� 	��7����� ��� ������ ��	� 766�����7�� �� � 6�������� ���3�	�� ����� �87�� 7� �79�
�8�4��:�3��8��� �7�6�9	�57���6���7��9	�5�������5�	� �8��48����7	�7�47��
	�=��	�6������73����8�������7
������	��6���::�������<�
�
�
�� ����">�������������*� �87�� �8�� 6���7�� �967��� �	��� �� � ��	�8�

��	
�8�	��7�6���	
�3������6A�
�

��*� �87�� 7� ��	�8�	� �967��� ��� 6���7�� 9	�5������ ���
��	
�3��9	�5�6�6���	��8��&?��7��������:�����8��
���������� ��� ����6�� ��97	7��5�� 67�7�
�8�4��:��5�	7����	��6�<�$<�

�

Page 7



��� ��>� ��� �	6�	� ��� 7		�� ���� �8��	� 6���� ��� 9	������ �8��
8�7��8����6������8��9��9����8���	�9	�����<�

�
��������=��	�6��
&<���	��7���6��7����������3�	�<��
$<����=�������97	�����6��7������	��������������7���967��<���
�

�
����
����

�
���� ���	�����
�������	�����	
����"��
��������	��

�� � ����������
���#�����$�
��
�������
�"��	��
��
 �����	���	�����	�����������
��
���
����"�
�
�����
�
�����6�	7����� 47�� :�5��� ��� 7� 	�9�	�+� 48�8� 9	������6� ���3�	�� 4��8� 7�
	��9������	������
��	�:7	6��:�=��	�������	��7���������8��	������67������
7	����:��	����8��	�	�9�	��������	���:�7�� �	5���<�
�
��� 47�� 	�9�	��6� �87�� �8�� ���
�  ���	��:� �	��9� 876� 6������6� �8��
���������1�� 	�=����� 7�6� �87�� �8��� 876� ��4� 6�5���6� 7�� 7���	�7��5��
799	�78����������	��:��8�����3�	����������7	����7����87��876���6�	:����
�	7����:����7	����	�9��9���4��8����	���:�7����6������<�
�
�8��	�9�	��7����	���		�6�������
��6�5���9��������7�9	�����������9	�5���8��
9	����� ��� �6��������:� 7�6� 7:	����:� ������� ��	� ��=��	�� �8	��:8� ��� �8��
9	�6������7�6�9	�����7���������8��	����7��	�9�	��<���8��9	���������������8��
���8�6�3��48�8�	�9�	���4���6�3��4	������7�6������6�7�6�6�����6��8��	�����
7�6�	��9����3�����������6����	����7:�����<��
�
�8�����
����-�	6��7��	�	�9�	��6��87���8��	��	7����:�����	�7��������	��7��������
�	7����:� ��	� ����� �7	�� 876� 3���� ��6�7��6� 7�� 3���� 9	7���� 3�� �8��
"�97	������ �����7��8<�����	����47��7�����76�� ���7�2	�:8�� �6�7��:	7���
7�6�7�	�=�����47���76�����	�:����	�7�5���<�
�
�� ����">��������������*� �87���8��������������8�������	�7������B�������8��

	�9�	��3������6<�
�

��*� �87�� �8�� ���������� ����� �8�� ���
�� ��9�	��
�	����:�'	������7������B�2�����8��	�9�	�<�

�
��� ��>� ��� ��73��� �8�� ��7��8� �5�	5��4� 7�6�  	������

���������� ��� 
��9� �9� ��� 67��� 4��8� �8�� 4�	
� ��� �8��
��	
����
�7�6������������3���6�7�9�����5��	��7�����8�9�
4��8��8��<�

�
�%�� ���	����	�����
�
�	�������	��������	����
 ���������&���

'����	����
�
�����6�	7����� 47�� :�5��� ��� 7� 	�9�	�� 48�8� 9	�5�6�6� 7�� �967��� ��� �8��
$%%?C&%� 9�������� ��	� 3��8� ���7��� 7�6� 9�	��	�7��� ��� �6����  ��7��
 �	5���+��8���7���7	�7��5�	�6�3���8�����������<�
�

Page 8



���47���		������9	�;���6� �87���6���� ��7�� �	5����4���6��5�	�9��6�3��
E&<F�� 7�6� �87�� �8�� ��6�	����:� 7���� ������ 	��7��6� ��� ��	�7���� ��� "�	���
'7�������7
���9+������	��7��6����������7	�+�����7����7��8�9�7������+�
	���6����7�� 7�6� ��	���:� 9�7������� 7�6� 	����:� ����� 7�� ��6�	��� '��9��1��
�����<�
�
�����	�� ����	��6� �87�� 7��� ���� �������7�� �B9��6���	�� 876� 3���� ��� 37
�
48�8� ����6�6� ���� ������:� 577��� 9����+� ��7��� �	7����:� 7�6� 7����67��� 7��
�����	�������<�
�
���7��4�	� ������3�	��=������������ �8��9	������ 	7������ ��	�7��������	��
����	��6��87�����47��8�9�6��87��	�73�������4�	
�4���6���7	��������4�6�4��
6��7�6<���
�
�� ����">�� �87���8���967���	�9�	��3������6<�
�
��� ��>� ��� 
��9� �8�� ���������� �967��6� ��� ���7��� 7�6�

9�	��	�7�������6���� ��7�� �	5���<�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�����/����(��"��+��87�	�
G�8��������:���7	��6�7��@<%%�9��7�6������8�6�7��@<H@�9�I<�

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



Health Overview & Scrutiny Committee Work Plan 2010 
Meeting Date Work Programme 
3 March 2010 1. Third Quarter Monitoring Report 

2. Quarterly Update from the Primary Care Trust on Dental Provision in York 
3. LINks Public Awareness & Consultation (PACE) report – neurological services – update on 

recommendation to Committee 
29 March 2010 
 

1. Interim Report on the Childhood Obesity Scrutiny Review 
2. Presentation on Transforming Community Services 
3. Presentation on 'The Individual funding request panel for NHS North Yorkshire and York.' 
4. Information Report on Women's Low Secure Unit, Clifton 

19 April 2010 1. Meeting of the Childhood Obesity Task Group 
19th May 2010 1. Final Report of the Childhood Obesity Task Group 

2. LINks Public Awareness & Consultation (PACE) report – end of life care 
3. Update on Dental Provision in York 

7th July 2010 1. 2009/10 Year End Outturn Report & Proposals for Corporate Priorities 
2. Presentation from LINks regarding their Annual Report & work plan for the forthcoming year (2010/11) 
3. Annual Report from relevant Local Strategic Partners 
4. Update on NHS North Yorkshire & York’s Universal Services Review (post maternity) 

July (TBC) 1. Update on Recommendations Arising from the Dementia Review 
2. Quarterly Update from the Primary Care Trust on Dental Provision in York 

22nd September 2010 
(provisional) 

1. Quarter 1 Monitoring Report & Report or Attendance of the Executive Member 

1st December 2010 
(provisional) 

1. Quarter 2 Monitoring Report 

19th January 2011 
(provisional) 

 

2 March 2011 
(provisional) 

1. Quarter 3 Monitoring Report & Annual Report from the LSP Chairs 

 
In addition to the above NHS North Yorkshire & York have also offered presentations on the following: 
 
1. Presentation on how Specialised Commissioning Group (SCG) works (David Cockayne) 
2. Presentation on their 5 year Strategic Plan (David Cockayne) 

3. Presentation on Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) 

 

A
genda Item

 4
P

age 11



P
age 12

T
his page is intentionally left blank



 1

DRAFT PAPER 
 
 

Outline Business case – women’s low secure unit, York 

 

Introduction 

This Outline Business Case (OBC) is prepared by NHS North Yorkshire and York 
and makes proposals for the development of a new women’s low secure service 
on the site of Clifton House in York. 
 
It has been established that there is a gap in the provision of low secure care for 
women nationally and the NHS Plan supported the development of a strategic 
approach to women’s secure services.  Currently women who require specialist 
low secure care are often placed outside of Yorkshire and Humber, many within 
the independent sector.  This can result in accessibility problems for friends and 
relatives as well as a high cost of care. 
 
This proposed development of a female low secure unit in York has been 
discussed at the Yorkshire Strategy Group meetings and neighbouring PCT 
commissioners as part of a major piece of work around the development of 
specialist services for women.  This document therefore presents proposal for 
developing women’s low secure facilities on the Clifton House site. 

Current Forensic Psychiatry service 

The North Yorkshire Forensic Psychiatry service was established in 1997.  It is 
currently part of the Mental Health services within the provider services of North 
Yorkshire and York Community & Mental Health Service (NYYCMHS). 
 
The Forensic Psychiatry service provides care and treatment for mentally 
disordered offenders and those who have similar needs. The service aims to 
adhere to the guiding principles of the Reed committee report of 1992.  The 
service is based at Clifton House, York with facilities located throughout the 
locality.  The services provided are summarised below. 
 

Service Bed 
numbers 

Low secure (assessment & treatment) - Westerdale 11 

Forensic rehabilitation - Riverfields 13 

Semi independent flat -  1 

Staffed community house - Field View 4 male beds 

Unstaffed community house – Elmfield Terrace 4 male beds 

Agenda Item 7Page 13



 2

Strategic case - Case for change 

A number of national reports have been produced that act as drivers for change 
underlying the need to develop Women’s Low Secure services. They support the 
change for: 

• Providing NHS services to support Forensic Mental Health patients 
inappropriately placed within the Criminal Justice System and Prisons. 

• Providing gender-specific services that recognise the differences in 
behaviours and care requirements for women. 

• Providing services that address national concerns of safety for Women in 
mixed sex services. 

• Recognising that models of care for women’s services need to be 
localised where maintaining contact with family and friends will support the 
rehabilitation process. 

 
In accordance with the National Strategy for Women, the Yorkshire Strategy 
document Forensic Services For Women was published.  This outlines a four-
year plan to develop a network of services across the region to meet the needs 
of women who require forensic mental health care.  A key recommendation was 
the need to undertake detailed needs assessment of women in low secure 
provision in order to inform service development. 
 
Following this, the low secure mental health strategy for Yorkshire and the 
Humber region (Foundation Document) was published in 2009. This document 
was developed in the context of national guidance as outlined above and also 
focused on the regional context derived from the Yorkshire and Humber Low 
Secure Report (2006).  The key findings of this report are: 

• Commissioning arrangements for low security were different in each 
locality within the catchment area.  

• Different commissioning systems existed for medium and low secure 
services, and this caused problems in ensuring service users were placed 
at the right level of security. 

• There was no capacity to plan strategically across the catchment area.  

• There was patchy or non-existent NHS provision for women with 
personality disorders. 

• There was a consistent understanding amongst commissioners about 
what fell under the rubric of `low security’; however there were wide 
variations in the type, nature and quality of environments being offered by 
providers.  

• The project found no relationship between the quality of clinical care and 
the occupied bed day price in different units in the independent sector. 

• The nature and quality of service being provided by NHS units was fairly 
consistent but meaningful comparative costs for NHS low secure beds 
were generally not available. 

Page 14



 3

• Local case management arrangements were inconsistent across the 
catchment group area. Ineffective case management arrangements were 
felt to contribute to extended and unnecessary lengths of stay for service 
users in secure care. 

As a result of the report, the Yorkshire & Humber region revised its 
commissioning arrangements for specialist services in order to address the 
issues identified. 
 
The commissioning arrangements of Low Secure Services are currently in a 
transitional period from local PCT commissioning to regional collaborative 
commissioning hosted by Barnsley PCT through the Specialist Commissioning 
Group (SCG). The SCG commissions Specialist services on behalf of 14 PCTs 
and members include PCT Chief Executives and Director’s of the representative 
PCTs. 
 
The terms of reference include commissioning for high cost, low volume 
specialist services for populations of 1,000,000 and over. As a result their focus 
is on sourcing sub regional services that will provide for greater populations than 
local commissioners historically focussed their attentions on. In relation to 
Women’s Low Secure services, one of the aims of the Specialist Commissioner 
Group is to provide a service that is better value for money than currently 
provided in the Independent Sector and that the economic downturn inevitably 
focuses commissioners to look for cost savings to be made but quality of service 
maintained or improved. This is a key focus of this OBC. 
 
In order to understand the nature and extent of services to be provided, between 
November 2008 and February 2009, 63 women detained in conditions of low 
security across Yorkshire and Humber were reviewed.  The review comprised a 
collateral review of clinical records, interviews with clinical team members and an 
interview with the service-user.  The female population were categorised with the 
following diagnoses:  

• Mental Illness - 37% 
• Personality Disorder - 22%  
• Mental Illness/Personality Disorder – 27% 
• Learning Disability – 14%  

The proposal for the Low Secure Unit is for the provision of services for all of 
these diagnoses apart from learning disability. In this respect there are currently 
54 patients of which are within the target market for this development. 
 
The implications from the figures produced are that there is a distinct lack of NHS 
facilities within the Yorkshire region for women’s low secure services. The impact 
this will have is that the cost is likely to be higher than NHS services, with a lower 
quality of care outcomes and less integration throughout the care pathway, which 
will have an effect on quality and length of rehabilitation. 
 
It is crucial that services for women with complex needs should be provided as 
part of a pathway of care.  There have been a number of service developments 

Page 15



 4

to improve that pathway, which has included a high support service, developed at 
a site in York as part of the step down service from low secure care.  
 
This development of a Yorkshire and Humber Female Low Secure Unit in York 
would operate in conjunction with the high support service and enhance the 
existing North Yorkshire Forensic Psychiatry Service in providing an integrated 
care pathway for regional services in the expectation of improving the quality of 
the service and providing the best opportunity for patient rehabilitation. 
 
The proposed development of a female low secure unit in York has been 
progressed in consultation and with support from the SCG and has also been 
discussed at the Yorkshire Strategy Group Meetings and neighbouring PCT 
commissioners as part of a major piece of work around the development of 
specialist services for women. 

Future activity and service requirements 

The service model focuses on re-provision of services for these patients. These 
are: 

• Personality Disorder - A younger group of women under 30 years of age, 
who have a primary diagnosis of personality disorder, are often abusing 
substances and have a recent history of violence to others as well as 
harm to themselves. This group of women appears to require more 
restrictive management. They are less likely to be in caring roles but are 
vulnerable to abuse from proximate and intimate relationships. 

 
• Mental Illness - Another group identified by the survey were women with 

an average age of 40 who had long contact with mental health services in 
the community and hospital settings, who had a primary label of serious 
mental illness, often with coexisting disorders.  These women had often 
suffered loss, had endured abuse or become isolated from their social and 
personal networks. A combination of the effects of their illness leading 
them to act dangerously towards others and a restricted ability to care for 
themselves and others has led to them finding it hard to reintegrate into 
open settings. Many of the women were assessed as not being ready or 
able to have less support or restriction but many wanted more freedom.   

 
• Screening & Assessment of Mental Health needs – models of care for 

women that will ensure that they are placed in the appropriate care 
environment for their needs.  Both the Bradley Report (April 2009) and the 
Corston Report (2007) highlight the need for robust screening for mental 
health problems in prison and the need for speedy transfers to hospital, as 
well as the need for a strategy for management of personality disorder in 
health and criminal justice settings. 

 
 

The service models have been constructed to ensure a holistic service to 
patients to include social care as well as clinical treatment to ensure better 
outcomes in terms of rehabilitation and quality of care. The service model also 

Page 16



 5

responds to strategic direction in providing a service for women within the 
criminal justice system to be assessed for their mental health needs to ensure 
they are placed in the appropriate care setting, an innovation supported by 
commissioners. 
 
A report produced by Laing & Buisson in 2006 called ‘Analysis and Projections of 
Independent Healthcare Markets in England 2007-2012’ investigated forecast 
changes in activity within healthcare markets including Mental Health markets.  
 
The report identified that demand for mental health hospitals (occupied beds) will 
continue to rise at a similar rate to the last five years (2% per annum), driven by 
demand for secure hospital services, while demand for acute, short term 
inpatient treatment will remain stable.  
 
The demand for secure services will continue to be driven by a trend towards 
placing individuals with severe mental health problems in more appropriate 
settings (Mental Health and Specialist Care Services Market Report 2006, Laing 
& Buisson). The components of this trend will continue to be: 

• government policy in favour of providing mental health care in facilities 
that are well suited to the needs of patients, as articulated in the National 
Service Framework for Mental Health; 

• greater caution amongst mental health professionals when discharging 
patients from a secure environment, within the more risk averse culture 
which has emerged in recent years; 

• preference of mental health professionals to place patients in settings 
which cater for their special needs (driven in part by pioneering 
development of specialist facilities in the independent sector); 

• transfer of some people with severe mental illness to hospitals from the 
prison system. 

 
The report also states that the NHS will continue to build in-house capacity, 
particularly for medium and low secure treatment.  These principles have been 
considered when evaluating the physical capacity requirements of the scheme.   
 

Economic Case 

Option Appraisal – Non-financial 
A number of options were considered by the business case team and a final 
short list of three options was taken forward to be appraised more fully.  The 
short list of options was: 
 

Page 17



 6

Ref Description Summary Content 

1 Do Nothing Provision of 22 low secure 
female beds to continue to be 
provided within Independent 
Sector organisations within the 
Yorkshire & Humber Region 

2 New Build on Clifton House 
Site (Location A – Rosedale 
land) 

Provision of 22 low secure 
female inpatient beds to be 
provided on the Clifton House 
site (Rosedale Land) adjacent to 
the current male low secure 
service. 
Development of a new 4 bed 
assessment ward for assessment 
of patients to determine 
appropriate care setting for their 
needs. To be provided as part of 
the development on the Clifton 
House site as above  

3  New Build on Local Authority 
owned land 

Provision of 22 low secure 
female inpatient beds to be 
provided on Local Authority land 
not yet identified by the service.  
Development of a new 4 bed 
assessment ward for assessment 
of patients to determine 
appropriate care setting for their 
needs. To be provided as part of 
the development on Local 
Authority land as above. 
The unit will be a stand alone 
unit. 

 
A workshop was held on the 20th October 2009 to evaluate the qualitative 
benefits associated with each option.  The results of this appraisal are 
summarised below. 
 

Ref Benefit Criteria 
Group 

Weight 
% 

Option 1 
Do Nothing 

Option 2 
New Build 
– Clifton 
House 

Option 3 
New Build – 

Local 
Authority 

  W Sco
re 

WxS Scor
e 

WxS Sco
re 

WxS 

1 Clinical Quality 
& Integration 

23 2 46 9 207 7 161 

2 Operational/ 
Environment 

19 5 95 9 171 9 171 

Page 18



 7

Ref Benefit Criteria 
Group 

Weight 
% 

Option 1 
Do Nothing 

Option 2 
New Build 
– Clifton 
House 

Option 3 
New Build – 

Local 
Authority 

  W Sco
re 

WxS Scor
e 

WxS Sco
re 

WxS 

3 Access to 
Services 

16 2 32 6 96 6 96 

4 Efficiency 15 1 15 8 120 6 90 
5 Staff 

Recruitment/ 
Training 

15 2 30 8 120 8 120 

6 Sustainability/ 
Flexibility 

12 6 72 8 96 7 84 

 Total 100.0  290  810  722 

 Rank   �  �  � 

 
The preferred non-financial option was option 2 – a new build on the site of 
Clifton House. This project is now proceeding via the Outline Business case 
presented. 
 

Page 19



Page 20

This page is intentionally left blank



 

  
 

   

 
Health Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
Report of the Interim Head of Civic, Legal & Democratic 
Services 

29th March 2010 

 
Interim Report of the Childhood Obesity Task Group 
 

Summary 

1. The purpose of this report is to present Members of the Health Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee with information received by the Task Group to date on the 
Childhood Obesity Review. 

Background 

2. Councillor Susan Galloway originally registered this topic in July 2009 following 
concerns raised at a Committee meeting in relation to two of the National 
Performance Indicators (NPI); namely: 

Ø NPI55 – obesity among primary school age children in reception year 
Ø NPI56 – obesity among primary school age children in Year 6 
 

3.  A feasibility study and proposed remit were submitted to the Health Overview 
& Scrutiny Committee in September 2009 and after due consideration it was 
agreed to proceed with this scrutiny review based on the following remit: 

Aim 

4. To address whether current service provision is effectively reducing childhood 
obesity in the city. 

Key Objectives 

i. To look at statistical evidence collected by the School Health Team in 
relation to NPI55 and NPI56 to discover the extent of childhood obesity in 
the City 

ii. To explore the impact of current initiatives such as healthy eating, 5 a day 
and 30 minutes of exercise 5 times a week etc on tackling obesity 

iii. To explore external factors that may contribute to childhood obesity 

iv. To learn more about the All Together Better Programme and the Healthy 
Weight, Active Lives Strategic Implementation Group and the methods 
they are using to reduce childhood obesity 

v. To look at the continuity of services into adulthood 

Agenda Item 8Page 21



vi. To explore how monies are spent on tackling obesity. 

5. Information regarding the Task Group membership and a list of the 
documentation received to date is at Annex A to this report. However, not all 
of the documentation received has been attached to this report but the 
annexes entirely reflect the information received. 

6. At a meeting of the Task Group on 1st March 2010 Councillor Siân Wiseman 
was appointed as Chair of the Task Group. 

Consultation 

7. Representatives of NHS North Yorkshire & York, York Hospitals Foundation 
Trust and City of York Council Officers have provided information to the Task 
Group so far. 

Information Gathered 

8. The information gathered to date is set out below under the heading of the 
relevant Key Objective. A breakdown of what information was required for 
each of the Key Objectives was set out in a scoping report dated 2nd 
December 2009. 

First Key Objective 
(i) To look at statistical evidence collected by the School Health Team in relation 
to NPI55 & NPI56 to discover the extent of childhood obesity in the City 
 
Information Gathered 
 

9. At a meeting of the full Health Overview & Scrutiny Committee on 2nd 
December 2009 the Health Improvement Manager (obesity) at NHS North 
Yorkshire and York, supported by the Associate Director of Public Health and 
Locality Director for York, The Children’s Trust Unit Manager and colleagues 
from CYC and York Hospital, gave a presentation to Members on Key 
Objective (i) of the remit; this is attached at Annex B to this report. 

10. The main issues covered in the presentation were: 

Ø Children’s Trust Units & Tackling Obesity through Partnerships 
Ø Healthy Weight, Active Lives Sub-Group 
Ø Local Data from the National Child Measurement Programme (NCMP) 

 
11. Figure 1 below shows the latest available data from the national child 
measurement programme 

Figure 1 

  National Child Measurement Programme (NCMP) Data - York 
  2006/07 2007/08 2008/09 
  Obese Obese Obese 
Year 6 15.6 16.6 16.7 
Reception 8.4 8.2 6.7 

Page 22



12. As can be seen from the table in Figure 1 above, obesity in Year 6 has risen 
0.1% from last year and decreased 1.5% in Reception year. A different cohort 
of children is used each year so the figures do not relate to the same children 
year on year.  

13. Members also received an example of the letter sent to parents of children 
recently measured as part of the National Child Measurement Programme 
and a copy of the Children & Young People’s Plan 2009-2012. 

General Comments 
 

14. Discussions between the Task Group, the Health Improvement Manager 
(obesity) at NHS North Yorkshire and York and the Associate Director of 
Public Health ensued and the following issues were raised: 

Ø When we think about obesity in children, what society determines as normal 
is actually likely to be a child who is heading towards becoming overweight 

Ø There were many and complex reasons that influenced childhood obesity 
including food consumption, food production, societal influences, individual 
psychology, biology, individual activity and activity environment, difference in 
socio-economic factors, lifestyles, children being driven to school and poor 
bus services in rural areas leading to more car journeys. 

Ø Statistics presented for reception and Year 6 children could not be presented 
by individual school, as the information would become too personal, possibly 
making some children identifiable, due to the small size of some schools. 

Ø The validity of the information on school clusters within the presentation.  

o It was later confirmed via e-mail from the Health Improvement Manager 
(obesity) at NHS North Yorkshire and York, supported by the Associate 
Director of Public Health that the secondary schools (school clusters) 
listed in the presentation were linked to a number of feeder schools 
(primary schools) and Annex C to this report refers. The data in Annex C 
did not indicate that students at the feeder schools, aligned under each of 
the secondary schools, actually attended the secondary schools, it just 
indicated how they were grouped. Therefore it would not be true to say 
that the Canon Lee school cluster had the highest level of overweight or 
obese students, but it does mean it can be said that the feeder schools 
aligned under the secondary school do have a higher prevalence of 
overweight/obesity than the other school clusters. 

o Members asked for confirmation as to the source of the data in Annex C 
and the Health Improvement Manager (obesity) at NHS North Yorkshire 
and York confirmed that the list was from the School Sports Partnership 
Coordinator for the Ebor Partnership. This led to concerns from Members 
that the data was skewed and subsequent targeting could, therefore, be 
flawed. The Health Improvement Manager (obesity) at NHS North 
Yorkshire and York confirmed the data was still analysed on an individual 
school basis and that it should not be too difficult to regroup the schools 

Page 23



according to true primary feeder schools and associated secondary 
schools rather than as sports clusters.  

o Members commented that data from Independent Schools was absent.  

Second Key Objective 
(ii)To explore the impact of current initiatives such as healthy eating, 5 a 
day and 30 minutes of exercise 5 times a week etc on tackling obesity 
 
Information Gathered 

 
Presentation from the PE & School Sports Consultant 

 
15. Members received a presentation and information from the PE & School 
Sport Consultant who is also the Healthy Weight Active Lives Delivery Plan 
Lead Officer and the MEND (MIND, Exercise, Nutrition, Do it!) York 
Programme Manager1 regarding the impact that initiatives such as PE 
(Physical Education) provision have on childhood obesity. This information is 
attached at Annex D to this report. 

16. The PE & School Sport Consultant highlighted the following challenges in 
addressing the incidence of childhood obesity in York: 

Ø There was no named individual lead for Childhood Obesity within City of 
York Council (CYC) 

Ø There were very few targeted initiatives that were about intervention, most 
were about universal provision 

Ø Current provision/initiatives tended to be short term 
 
17. She suggested the following developments may help in addressing the 
incidences of childhood obesity within the city: 

Ø Have a dedicated Lead Officer for Childhood Obesity within CYC 
Ø There should be clear pathways and long term planning of 
provisions/initiatives 

Ø There should be a revision of commissioning from the NHS 
 
General Comments on the presentation 

18. Discussions between the Task Group and the PE & School Sport Consultant 
ensued and the following points were raised: 

Ø The PE & School Sport Consultant said there was little specific information 
available from schools on childhood obesity. Schools were reluctant to single 
out students because of their weight and most measures were aimed at all 
children rather than solely targeting those that were overweight. It was 
therefore difficult to measure the impact that PE had on childhood obesity. 

                                            
1 Information regarding the Healthy Weight, Active Lives Initiative and MEND is detailed under Key 
Objective (iv) within this report. 

Page 24



Ø The percentage of children in the 5 to 16 year age bracket completing 2 
hours of PE was satisfactory but the length of time exercising within the 
sessions was questionable.  For example, the Task Group had anecdotal 
evidence that one school had a two hour swimming slot in their timetable but 
only 30 minutes of this was spent swimming, the rest was travelling and 
changing time. 

Ø The PE & School Sport Consultant said there was a successful school club 
links framework in place, which assisted recreational clubs and schools to link 
thereby encouraging younger people to undertake exercise outside of school 
PE lessons. The number of links between external clubs and schools had 
increased from 5 in 2006 to 13 per school at the present time. However both 
the PE & School Sport Consultant and the Task Group felt that more work 
needed to be done to increase the number of links. 

Ø School PE is now a mix of traditional and non-traditional activities, which has 
encouraged more students to become involved. It can also encourage further 
participation outside of the school curriculum. However, there was some 
concern from Members that continuity could be lost as students frequently 
only had the chance to do a particular sport for one term. 

Ø Members of the Task Group believed that the cost of many out of school 
sporting activities/lessons could be very expensive and may preclude some 
children from taking part. 

Ø The PE & School Sport Consultant said that there had been a positive uptake 
in under 16 free swimming passes (Annex D refers), especially among 11 
and 12 year old children. Despite this, Members were concerned that the 
figures were only for registering for a pass and did not quantify how many 
had collected their passes and how many were actually using them. 
Currently, the data for this was not available. 

Ø The PE & School Sport Consultant confirmed that there was no statutory 
requirement for secondary schools to provide swimming lessons and 
therefore swimming was predominantly linked with primary schools. Primary 
schools received approximately £30 per annum per child for swimming but 
this was not ring-fenced. Additionally, for those schools who had to travel any 
distance to their nearest pool further costs were incurred for coach hire. The 
expensive cost of hiring a coach to transport children to their nearest pool 
also made it difficult for some schools to provide swimming lessons for their 
students without asking for financial contributions from parents. It was noted 
by the Task Group, however, that all primary schools bar one offered 
swimming as part of the curriculum but sometimes only for a few weeks in a 
year. 

Ø Arising from the discussions on swimming Members of the Task Group 
commented that there was a shortage of useable pools both within school 
time and out of school time. The PE & School Sport Consultant confirmed 
there was ongoing work taking place to support private pools to bring their 
standards up to the level required for school use. Some schools currently use 

Page 25



private pools for curriculum swimming as the community pools are used by all 
York residents, which can lead to timetabling difficulties. 

19. The Task Group raised concerns that many children could still not swim by 
the time they went to Secondary School and anecdotal evidence indicated 
that in a class of 40 Year 6 children only 4 could swim a length. 

Information Received on School Meals  

20. The Task Group also received information from the Contracts Officer and the 
Assistant Director of resources (Learning, Culture & Children’s Services) on 
school meals and the possible impact these were having on childhood 
obesity. This information is attached at Annexes E, E1 and E2 to this report. 

General Comments on Information Received on School Meals 

21. Members of the Task Group discussed the information received and made 
the following observations: 

Ø Whilst nutrition was a key part of school meals, the biggest perceived issue in 
York was around cost.  

Ø From the information provided it appeared that the nutritional content of the 
meals was well balanced. However, the Task Group had concerns that the 
protein and non-starch polysaccharide (NSP) content were high and were 
interested to know whether this had any impact on childhood obesity. The 
Assistant Director of Resources (LCCS) and the Health Improvement 
Manager from NHS North Yorkshire & York were asked to look at this and 
after consultation the Contracts Officer for School Meals received the 
following response from North Yorkshire County Caterers: 

‘…protein levels are higher than they need to be (as the British diet is in 
general) because whilst we have reduced quantities of meat a little; parents 
and children judge value for money on the size of the meat portion i.e. 1 large 
fish finger or 1 sausage is not seen as good value. Without sufficient meat 
and/or wholegrain products and pulses it would be impossible to meet the 
stringent standards for iron and zinc. 

NSP levels are high because we use a lot of pulses in the vegetarian option 
and in order to ensure sufficient levels of zinc we add wholemeal flour, oats 
and seeds …’ 

Discussion suggested that different schools had different rules in relation to 
serving second portions and the Task Group felt that this needed to be more 
controlled. An e-mail received after the meeting contained the following 
response from North Yorkshire County Caterers: 

‘Normally cooks would serve any left over food as seconds as there are 
always some children who need feeding and will eat anything. The problem 
arises with those children who should not be having seconds but it is for 
individual schools to decide what they wish us to do on this and advise.’ 

Page 26



22. Members of the Task Group believed that schools and parents should 
encourage further take up of school meals. They believed that school meals 
were healthier and more balanced nutritionally than pack ups, which often 
contained chocolate and crisps.  

Third Key Objective 
(iii) To explore external factors that may contribute to childhood obesity 
 

23. So far Members of the Task Group have received three presentations/briefing 
papers in relation to this key objective and these are detailed below: 

Presentation from the School Travel Plan Co-ordinator 

24. The School Travel Plan Co-ordinator confirmed that childhood obesity had 
become a major health issue nationally. Combined with this is the fact that 
many children do not have the opportunity to take regular exercise. Travelling 
actively to school (walking, cycling & mini scooter) provided an opportunity for 
children to take some of the 60 minutes activity a day that they needed to 
stay healthy. 

25. School travel plans provide a framework, within which is set out a series of 
practical steps for reducing car use, increasing the opportunity for children to 
travel actively to school and improving children’s safety on their journey to 
school. In their writing, the whole school community is consulted. 

26. The presentation given to the Task Group gave further detail on what a travel 
plan was, what kind of measures a travel plan can include and how a school 
can promote its travel plan. It also looked at the role the School travel Plan 
Co-ordinator played in developing travel plans with schools and promoting 
active travel activities. 

27. It was confirmed that there was a Government target for Local Authorities to 
deliver travel plans in 100% of schools in the city by March 2011, however 
there was no obligation on the school to produce travel plans. 

General Comments on the Presentation given by the School Travel Plan 
Co-ordinator 

28. Members of the Task Group discussed the presentation given by the School 
Travel Plan Co-ordinator and made the following observations: 

Ø Many parents drove their children to school, dropping them en route to work. 
There were difficulties in re-educating parents in relation to the benefits of 
walking and cycling. The Task Group also felt that school staff needed to be 
encouraged to promote walking and cycling to school as healthy alternatives 
to being driven.  

Ø Children living outside the ring road may have to cross the bypass to reach 
school and there were few safe ways to do this. Neither did the Task Group 
believe that many parents would allow their children to cycle this route to 
school. The geographic make up of the city and the positioning of the ring 

Page 27



road meant that some children were always driven to school no matter what 
their age. 

Ø The idea of making walking and/or cycling part of the school day was 
discussed. With willing volunteers (either parents or school staff) activities 
such as nature trails could be organised to demonstrate that walking can be 
interesting and that there are plenty of discoveries to make on the way, 
especially for younger children. 

Ø Walking buses were good but there were difficulties in sustaining these, as 
there were very few volunteers to assist with them. 

Ø Some children were taken and picked up from school by childminders. At the 
moment the School Travel Plan Co-ordinators only consulted with schools 
and parents and not with childminders. Members felt that there was an 
opening to include child minders as consultees in school travel plan reviews 
and to encourage them to either walk or cycle with the children they looked 
after. 

Briefing Note presented by the Early Years Childcare Manager 

29. The Early Years Childcare Manager provided a briefing note to Members in 
relation to healthy food and exercise in the day nurseries in York; this is 
attached at Annex F to this report. The Chair of the National Day Nurseries 
Association in York was also in attendance at the meeting of the Task Group 
on 1st March 2010. 

30. The briefing note stated that Ofsted do not inspect against Healthy Eating in 
nurseries, however recently they have shown interest and asked questions 
around this area. 

31. The Chair of the National Day Nurseries Association in York confirmed that 
until 2003 all nurseries were required to have a proper kitchen and to provide 
home cooked meals on site; this was no longer the case.  

General Comments on the Briefing Note presented by the Early Years 
Childcare Manager 

32. The Task Group welcomed the information received and was very pleased to 
learn that healthy meals were being served in the day nurseries in York. 
However, they acknowledged that not all children in the city attended day 
nurseries. 

33. The Task Group felt that the day nurseries in York were providing good 
healthy meals and plenty of exercise for the children in attendance. They also 
welcomed the fact that children sat at a table for proper meals. 

34. Discussions ensued and the Chair of the local National Day Nurseries 
Association Network confirmed that he believed an integral part of a good 
nursery was its kitchen. Many nursery kitchens in the city were 100% organic 
with many not keeping deep fat fryers. Five a day had been nursery policy for 
many years. 

Page 28



35. The Task Group believed that the evidence presented in Annex F of this 
report suggested that parents of children attending day nurseries were kept 
fully informed of what their children were eating, the Task Group had not yet 
seen evidence that this continued when the children started Primary School. 
This led to discussions that further work may need to take place to promote 
the continuation of healthy eating habits into Primary Schools. The Task 
Group felt that, in their experience, once children reached 6 or 7 years of age 
it was difficult to change their eating habits. 

36. This led to a discussion on pack ups and the fact that these were given to 
children more widely when they started primary school, sometimes due to a 
cost factor rather than through choice. However, it was felt that if very young 
children were given pack ups then they needed adequate time and 
supervision to eat them. 

37. He felt that the culture of ‘pack ups’ had not helped as many parents still 
included crisps and chocolate biscuits on a daily basis. He also had concerns 
regarding the standard of meals provided in primary schools within the city. 

Presentation from a representative of the Youth Service 

38. In the context of work going on within Young People’s Services the Task 
Group received a presentation on how our changing way of life contributes to 
an unhealthy lifestyle and potential obesity problems for young people today 
this covered the following points: 

Ø Driving to school 
Ø Fear of going out 
Ø Fast food generation 
Ø Parental short cuts 
Ø Commercially targeted 
Ø Body image 
Ø Cyber bullying 

 
39. A copy of this presentation is attached at Annex G to this report. 

  General Comments on the Presentation from a Representative of the 
Youth Service 

40. Members of the Task Group and the representative of the Youth Service 
discussed the presentation in detail. The following points came out of the 
discussion: 

Ø It was not unusual for both parents to be out at work all day, work long 
hours and commute. This led to less time being available for cooking 
meals, thus more ready prepared food was eaten which tended to be less 
healthy. 

 
Ø Those young people who were perceived as less able often took comfort in 
food, many with resultant weight problems. It was also acknowledged that it 
was easy for many young people to ‘hide away and play computer games’ 

Page 29



and this resulted in many younger people being less active than they ever 
had been before. 

 
Other comments 

41. As a result of the information presented and the discussions had in relation to 
key objective (iii), it was acknowledged that there had been significant 
changes in lifestyles in the past 60 years and there had been a vast increase 
in the number of people who were either overweight or obese. Prior to 1950 
there had been little or no food waste and all meals were home cooked. 
There were also less ready prepared meals available. 

42. The Task Group felt that buy one get one free offers in supermarkets 
encouraged people to buy more food than they required. 

43. The Task Group was interested to learn about how much food waste there 
was in York.2  

44. Generally they believed that there needed to be a ‘food culture’ change (not 
just in terms of waste) but in what food both children and adults ate and how 
it was prepared. 

Fourth Key Objective 
(iv) To learn more about the All Together Better Programme and The 
Healthy Weight, Active Lives Strategic Implementation Group and the 
methods they are using to reduce childhood obesity3 
 

45. Further information on this key objective will be provided to the Task Group at 
their next meeting. The information collected and discussed so far is 
presented below. 

Information Gathered 
 
Healthy Weight Active Lives 
 

46. The PE and School Sport Consultant successfully applied for Local Strategic 
Partnership funding to set up the Healthy Weight, Active Lives Delivery Plan 
(HWALDP). The HWALDP is a partnership between Sport & Active Leisure 
(the lead partner), Altogether Better, CYC Food Safety Unit and York City 
Knights Rugby Club. The HWALDP reports to the Local Strategic Partnership 
and to the Healthy Weight Actives Lives Strategic Implementation Group.  

MEND 
 

47.  The MEND programme (Mind, Exercise, Nutrition, Do it!) is led by the PE 
Consultant from Sport & Active Leisure and is a targeted self-referral 
programme. It is a community and family based programme for overweight 

                                            
2 Currently no link has been established between childhood obesity and food waste and further 
pursuit of this would be outside the remit of the Task Group 
3 The scoping report for this review (dated 2nd December 2009) also asked that information be 
included on the MEND (Mind, Exercise, Nutrition, Do it!) programme. 

Page 30



and obese children aged between 7 and 13 and their families. The 
programme places emphasis on (M)ind, (E)xercise and (N)utrition, (D)o it! It 
combines all the elements known to be vital in treating and preventing obesity 
in children, including family involvement, practical education in nutrition and 
diet, increasing physical activity and behavioural change.  

48. MEND was chosen as a viable programme due to its clinical success and 
national profile. It is a relatively cost effective and straightforward programme 
to set up and run. It does, however, require intensive resources to deliver. 
Each place on the programme is valued at £400 and the course is delivered 
for free to referring families. 

49. MEND has so far run two successful programmes supporting and re-
educating children and their families to become happier, healthier and fitter. 
The first programmes were located as close as possible to identified NHS 
hotspots for childhood obesity in York. All children that have taken part so far 
have had successful outcomes. For example, the average cm waist 
measurement reduced by 5cm during the first programme.  

50. At a recent Ofsted review of the York programme the inspector reported to 
MEND staff that this type of early intervention was successful due to the 
relationships that develop between the delivery staff and the families 
attending. The third programme started in January 2010 and 11 families were 
expected to take part. 

51. Funding for the programme finishes in December 2010 but 4 more sessions 
have been funded. There is also a MEND programme for 2 to 4 year olds and 
for 5 to 7 year olds. 

52. The greatest challenge for MEND is recruiting families to ‘self refer’ to the 
programme and so far none of the programmes have been full. It is known 
that 40% of the families who sign up to the programme then decide not to 
attend with the most common reason for non-attendance being, ‘the child 
does not want to attend’ or ‘the child is too upset to attend’. However families 
that do attend report significant changes in their child and in their family’s 
behaviour leading to an overall improvement in health. 

York City Knights Foundation ‘Get Active’ Programme 
 

53. The York City Knights Foundation 'Get Active' programme has also been 
running an educational assembly for Year Six children in all local primary 
schools to highlight the importance of a healthy lifestyle. Each class will also 
be able to take part in a series of exercise sessions to promote the benefits of 
regular exercise.  

General Comments 
 

54.  The Task Group discussed the information received and felt that there had 
been significant publicity of the MEND programme through newspaper 
articles, radio interviews and the Theatre Royal brochure. It was suggested 
that more identification and encouragement to participate through schools 
and GPs might help to increase take-up. 

Page 31



55. Both the PE & School Sport Consultant and the Task Group believed there 
was an assumption that average weight equals a healthy weight; this was not 
necessarily the case. 

56. The PE & School Sport Consultant confirmed that due to the temporary 
nature of funding arrangements there was little chance that MEND or similar 
initiatives would extend into adulthood. 

57. All believed that educating parents was key to preventing childhood obesity. 

Fifth Key Objective 
(iv) To look at the continuity of services into adulthood 

58. The Task Group have yet to fully investigate this key objective but to date 
they have received some synthetic data (which may not be accurate) relating 
to adult obesity. It is an estimate from 2005 and 2007 data. This is attached 
at Annex H to this report. 

Next Steps 

59. Members of the Task Group have received a vast amount of information to 
date some of which they are seeking clarification on for their next meeting, 
this includes: 

Ø Further information on school meals (uptake in secondary schools, an 
example menu from a secondary school, popular food choices) 

Ø Further information on Physical Activity and Physical Education within 
schools 

 
60. The Task Group have requested the following information for their next 
meeting: 

Ø Healthy Schools Initiative 
Ø Further information on the external factors that can contribute to childhood 
obesity 

Ø Cooking healthily courses 
Ø The All Together Better Programme (including a comparison with 
Scarborough) and other initiatives 

Ø Healthy Weight Active Lives Strategic Implementation Group 
Ø The continuity of services into adulthood 
Ø Whether monies spent on the various initiatives are being used to the best 
advantage 

Ø Information on what other Local Authorities are doing in relation to 
childhood obesity 

 
61. It is also hoped that a representative of the Food Standards Agency will be 
present at or provide information for the next meeting in relation to 
supermarket labelling. 

Page 32



Options 

62. There are no options associated with this report it is for information only. 

Analysis 

63. Members of the Task Group still need to further clarify some of the evidence 
received and some of the comments and observations made in order to 
clearly set out what impact they have on childhood obesity. 

Corporate Strategy 2009/2012 

64. This report and the review being undertaken are directly linked to the ‘Healthy 
City’ theme of the Corporate Strategy 2009/2012. 

Implications 

65. Financial – There is a small amount of funding available within the scrutiny 
budget to carry out reviews. There are no other financial implications 
associated with this report; however implications may arise as the review 
progresses. 

66. Human Resources – There are no Human Resources implications 
associated with the recommendations within this report. 

67. Legal – There are no direct legal implications associated with the 
recommendations within this report; however implications may arise as the 
review progresses. 

68. There are no known equalities, property, crime & disorder or other 
implications associated with the recommendations in this report. 

Risk Management 

69. In compliance with the Council’s risk management strategy there are no 
known risks associated with the recommendations in this report. 

Recommendations 

70. Members are asked to note the interim report and confirm the next steps set 
out in paragraphs 59 to 61 of this report. 

Reason: In order to progress this review 

Page 33



 

Contact Details 

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report: 
Tracy Wallis 
Scrutiny Officer 
Scrutiny Services 
Tel: 01904 551714 

Alison Lowton 
Interim Head of Civic, Legal & Democratic Services 
Tel: 01904 551004 
 
Interim Report 
Approved 

ü Date 19.03.2010 
 

Specialist Implications Officer(s) 
 
None  

Wards Affected: All ü 
 
For further information please contact the author of the report 
 
 
Background Papers: 
 
Childhood Obesity Scoping Report – 02.12.2009 
 
Annexes 
 
Annex A Task Group membership, schedule of meetings and papers received 
Annex B Presentation to the Full Committee 
Annex C Information on school Clusters 
Annex D PE Provision Information 
Annex E Briefing Note on the School Meals Service 
Annex E1 Tables A, B & C (associated with the briefing note on the School Meals 

Service) 
Annex E2 Appendices A & B (associated with the briefing note on the School 

Meals Service) 
Annex F Briefing Note on How Day Nurseries in York Contribute to Healthy 

Food and Exercise 
Annex G Presentation from the Youth Service 
Annex H Synthetic data on Adult Obesity 
 
 
 

Page 34



List of Documentation Received to Date        Annex A 

Document Name Date Provider Notes 
PowerPoint Presentation 02.12.2009 Health Improvement Manager 

(obesity) at NHS North Yorkshire 
and York, Associate Director of 
Public Health and Locality Director 
for York, The Children’s Trust Unit 
Manager and colleagues from 
CYC and York Hospital 

Background information, childhood 
obesity statistics, Children’s Trust Units, 
tackling obesity through Partnerships, 
Healthy Weight, Active Lives Sub-Group, 
local data from the National Child 
Measurement Programme (NCMP) 

North Yorkshire & York 
Healthy Weight, active Lives 
Strategy 2009-2010 

02.12.2009 Health Improvement Manager 
(Obesity) – NHS North Yorkshire & 
York 

A copy of this was available for Members 
to view at the meeting on 02.12.2009. 
The Scrutiny Officer has a copy if 
required. 

Childhood Obesity 02.12.2009 Centre for Public Scrutiny 
Publication 

Library Monitor – Childhood Obesity 

The Children & Young 
People’s Plan 2009-2012 

02.12.2009 Children’s Trust Unit Manager Children & Young People’s Plan for the 
City of York 

Leaflet 02.12.2009 NHS Publication Top Tips for Top Kids – Leaflet about 
eating well, moving more and living 
longer 

Letter 02.12.2009 NHS North Yorkshire & York Example letter sent to parents on the 
National Child Measurement Programme 

Letter 02.12.2009 Children’s Trust Unit Manager Letter received from family who had 
attended the MEND programme 

E-mail 07.12.2009 School Travel Plan Co-ordinator E-mail sent to Cllr Sue Galloway 
regarding School Travel Plans 

Jorvick School Sports 
Partnerships Data 

18.12.2009 Health Improvement Manager 
(Obesity) – NHS North Yorkshire & 
York 

Jorvick & Oaklands Sports Clusters 

Healthy Weight; Healthy Lives 18.12.2010 Health Improvement Manager Consumer Insight Survey 

P
age 35



List of Documentation Received to Date        Annex A 

Document Name Date Provider Notes 
(Obesity) – NHS North Yorkshire & 
York 

Foresight Report 18.12.2010 Health Improvement Manager 
(Obesity) – NHS North Yorkshire & 
York 

Tackling Obesities: Future Choices 
Project Report 

Ebor School Sports 
Partnership 

20.01.2010 Health Improvement Manager 
(Obesity) – NHS North Yorkshire & 
York  

Explanation of School Clusters 

Healthy Weight Active Lives 27.01.2010 PE & School Sport Consultant Information re: MEND, Food Labelling & 
Composition Awareness Training, Get 
Active & Altogether Better 

York PESSYP 2008/09 27.01.2010 PE & School Sport Consultant Trends of the city with relation to a variety 
of school sport indicators 

Good News 27.01.2010 PE & School Sport Consultant 2010-2011 Physical Activity Campaign 
Information 

Adult Participation in Physical 
Activity 

27.01.2010 PE & School Sport Consultant Background Report for the Task Group 

Addressing Childhood Obesity 27.01.2010 PE & School Sport Consultant PowerPoint Presentation 
Letter to Scrutiny Officer & 
Task Group 

27.01.2010 PE & School Sport Consultant Information on the impact that initiatives 
such as PE provision, Healthy Eating, 5 a 
day have had on childhood obesity 

Swimming Information 27.01.2010 PE & School Sport Consultant Data on swimming uptake (under 16s) 
City of York School Meals 
Arrangements 

27.01.2010 Contracts Office & Assistant 
Director of Resources (LCCS) 

School meal contract arrangements for 
schools in York 

Briefing Note 27.01.2010 Contracts Officer & Assistant 
Director of Resources (LCCS) 

Statistics on school meal uptake annually 
since 2003 & corresponding prices. 
Typical menu and nutritional content of 
such school meals annually since 2003 

P
age 36



List of Documentation Received to Date        Annex A 

Document Name Date Provider Notes 
School Food Trust Information 27.01.2010 Contracts Officer & Assistant 

Director of Resources (LCCS) 
Food based-standards information 

Nutrition Plans/Charts 27.01.2010 Contracts Officer & Assistant 
Director of Resources (LCCS) 

Nutrition Chart/Plan for secondary & 
primary schools– North Yorkshire County 
Caterers 

Menu Choices 27.01.2010 Contracts Officer & Assistant 
Director of Resources (LCCS) 

Menu cycles with costs (secondary & 
primary) 

E-Mail 08.02.2010 Health Improvement Manager 
(Obesity) – NHS North Yorkshire & 
York 

Synthetic Data on adult obesity 

E-Mail 19.02.2010 Contracts Officer & Assistant 
Director of Resources (LCCS) 

Clarifications arising from the Task Group 
meeting on 27.01.2010 in relation to 
school meals 

Briefing Paper 01.03.2010 Early Years Childcare Manager How day nurseries contribute to healthy 
for & exercise 

PowerPoint Presentation 01.03.2010 School Travel Plan Co-ordinator School Travel Plans 
PowerPoint Presentation 01.03.2010 Head Of Young People's Service, 

Access And Inclusion, Learning 
Culture & Children’s Services 
 

Young People’s Services & Obesity – 
external factors that may contribute to 
childhood obesity 

Healthy Schools Initiative  27.01.2010 
& 
19.04.2010 

Healthy Schools and Risky 
Behaviour Consultant 

Information on the Healthy Schools 
Programme 

 
Members of the Task Group: 
Councillor Susan Galloway 
Councillor Tracey Simpson-Laing 
Councillor Siân Wiseman 

P
age 37



P
age 38

T
his page is intentionally left blank



Scrutiny Committee

Childhood Obesity
Judy Kent - Children’s Trust Unit Manager City of York Council
Rachel Johns - Associate Director of Public Health and Locality Director for York
Greg McGrath - Health Improvement Manager NHS NYY
Kathryn Yeoman - Deputy Directorate Manager for Child Health

P
age 39



Overview 

Obesity: a complex system

Tackling Obesity through Partnerships

q Children’s Trusts

q Children and Young People’s Plan 2009-2012q Children and Young People’s Plan 2009-2012

q Partnership planning structure

Local Data from the National Child Measurement Programme

q NCMP

q Obesity prevalence in Reception and Year 6

q Local insight and clusters

P
age 40



Complex multifaceted system of determinants

Foresight (2007)Tackling Obesities: Future choices – Project report 2nd Ed

P
age 41



Tackling Obesity through Partnerships
Judy Kent P

age 42



Children’sChildren’sChildren’sChildren’s Partnership Partnership Partnership Partnership 
Planning ArrangementsPlanning ArrangementsPlanning ArrangementsPlanning Arrangements

P
age 43



Children’s TrustsChildren’s TrustsChildren’s TrustsChildren’s Trusts
� 2001 Victoria Climbi2001 Victoria Climbi2001 Victoria Climbi2001 Victoria Climbiéééé
� 2003 Every Child Matters 2003 Every Child Matters 2003 Every Child Matters 2003 Every Child Matters 

–––– national framework for national framework for national framework for national framework for 
changechangechangechange

� Children’s TrustsChildren’s TrustsChildren’s TrustsChildren’s Trusts
� 5 Outcomes: 5 Outcomes: 5 Outcomes: 5 Outcomes: 

� HealthyHealthyHealthyHealthy
� SafeSafeSafeSafe
� Positive contributionPositive contributionPositive contributionPositive contribution
� Enjoy and achieveEnjoy and achieveEnjoy and achieveEnjoy and achieve
� Economic wellEconomic wellEconomic wellEconomic well----beingbeingbeingbeing

P
age 44



Who is in York’s Children's Trust? Who is in York’s Children's Trust? Who is in York’s Children's Trust? Who is in York’s Children's Trust? 

(Building Brighter Futures: Next Steps for the Children's Workforce, DCSF, 2008)

P
age 45



Children’s Trusts Children’s Trusts Children’s Trusts Children’s Trusts –––– a set of a set of a set of a set of 
arrangements…arrangements…arrangements…arrangements…
� (Legal basis Children Act 2004 / subsequent guidance)(Legal basis Children Act 2004 / subsequent guidance)(Legal basis Children Act 2004 / subsequent guidance)(Legal basis Children Act 2004 / subsequent guidance)
� Children’s CommissionerChildren’s CommissionerChildren’s CommissionerChildren’s Commissioner
� Director / Lead Member for Children's ServicesDirector / Lead Member for Children's ServicesDirector / Lead Member for Children's ServicesDirector / Lead Member for Children's Services
� Duty to: cooperate;  safeguard and promote welfare of children; set Duty to: cooperate;  safeguard and promote welfare of children; set Duty to: cooperate;  safeguard and promote welfare of children; set Duty to: cooperate;  safeguard and promote welfare of children; set 

up local Safeguarding Children Boardsup local Safeguarding Children Boardsup local Safeguarding Children Boardsup local Safeguarding Children Boards
� Provision for indexes / databases to enable better information Provision for indexes / databases to enable better information Provision for indexes / databases to enable better information Provision for indexes / databases to enable better information 

sharing;sharing;sharing;sharing;
� Single Children & Young People’s PlanSingle Children & Young People’s PlanSingle Children & Young People’s PlanSingle Children & Young People’s Plan
� Joint Inspection Framework / Joint Area ReviewsJoint Inspection Framework / Joint Area ReviewsJoint Inspection Framework / Joint Area ReviewsJoint Inspection Framework / Joint Area Reviews
� Duty to promote educational achievement of children in careDuty to promote educational achievement of children in careDuty to promote educational achievement of children in careDuty to promote educational achievement of children in care

P
age 46



A Children’s Trust is about:A Children’s Trust is about:A Children’s Trust is about:A Children’s Trust is about:
� Shared visionShared visionShared visionShared vision
� Children & Young People’s Plan (CYPP) Children & Young People’s Plan (CYPP) Children & Young People’s Plan (CYPP) Children & Young People’s Plan (CYPP) –––– strategic, local strategic, local strategic, local strategic, local 

priorities, actions & deliverypriorities, actions & deliverypriorities, actions & deliverypriorities, actions & deliverypriorities, actions & deliverypriorities, actions & deliverypriorities, actions & deliverypriorities, actions & delivery
� Improving outcomes Improving outcomes Improving outcomes Improving outcomes –––– 0000----19+ (25)19+ (25)19+ (25)19+ (25)
� Partnerships  Partnerships  Partnerships  Partnerships  
� Prevention and early interventionPrevention and early interventionPrevention and early interventionPrevention and early intervention
� Integration: governance, strategy, planning, Integration: governance, strategy, planning, Integration: governance, strategy, planning, Integration: governance, strategy, planning, 

commissioning, provision, process, workforce…commissioning, provision, process, workforce…commissioning, provision, process, workforce…commissioning, provision, process, workforce…
� YorOK YorOK YorOK YorOK –––– Children's Trust UnitChildren's Trust UnitChildren's Trust UnitChildren's Trust Unit

P
age 47



CYPP 2009CYPP 2009CYPP 2009CYPP 2009----12121212
� Multi-agency plan
� High level, strategic, vision
� Consultation (www.yor-ok.org.uk)

Outcome focussed� Outcome focussed
� Priorities & how we will deliver them
� How we will monitor progress
� Spending plans

P
age 48



Partnership Planning Structure  
 
     

  
Sustainable 
Community 
Strategy 

 
Local 

Development 
Framework 

Local Area 
Agreement 

 
Local Strategic 
Partnership 

WOW Partnership 
& Delivery Boards 

Performance
Indicators 

 

 
 

CAMHS Executive 
Parenting Strategy 

Board 
Workforce 
Development  

Involvement Group  
Teenage Pregnancy 
Partnership Board 
Integrated Working 

 
 

Priorities: 
 

National 
 

Regional 
 

YorOK 
Integrated 

Commissioning 
Group 

 

 
YorOK Children’s 
Trust Board 

 
 

Children & 
Young  

People’s Plan 
 

Framework & Delivery Boards 
Strategic Delivery        
   Partnerships     

 

- Children’s 
Trust Board 
- Learning City 
Board 
- Healthy City Board 
- Safer York     
Partnership 
- Environment 
Partnership 
- Inclusive York 
Forum 
- York @ Large 
- York Economic 
Partnership 

 Integrated Working 
Implementation 

Group 
14-19 Strategy Group 
Integrated Services 
for Disabled Children 
NEET Strategy 

Looked after Children 
Strategic Partnership 
YOT Partnership 
Children’s Centres 
Partnership Board 
Extended Services 
Strategy Group 

Early Years Forum 
Early Intervention 

Fund 
Healthy Weight Active 

Lives 
 

City of York 
Local 

Safeguarding 
Board 

 

 
City 
 

Neighbour- 
hood 
 
 
 
 

Children  
 

Young 
People 

 
Parents 

P
age 49



Healthy Weight Active Lives Healthy Weight Active Lives Healthy Weight Active Lives Healthy Weight Active Lives 
subsubsubsub----groupgroupgroupgroup
� New partnership forum – PCT Lead
� Focus – to reduce child obesity� Focus – to reduce child obesity
� LAA Indicators (NI 55 Reception / NI 56 Year 6) 
� HWAL strategy and action plan 

P
age 50



Local Data from the National Child Measurement Programme
Greg McGrath

P
age 51



9.6 9.6

7.3

10.3
8.7

13.6
11.7

8.3 8.2

18.3

15.4

12.8
14

16.7 16.2 16.6

13.6

20

5

10

15

20

25

P
er

ce
n

ta
g

e 
%

NCMP, District level prevalence 2007/08 – all children at risk of being obese

0

En
gla

nd

Cr
av

en

Ha
mb

let
on

Ha
rro

ga
te

Ri
ch

mo
nd

sh
ire

Ry
ed

ale
Sc

ar
bo

ro
ug

h

Se
lby Yo
rk

Comparision

Reception Year 6

Public Health Intelligence, NHS NYY 2009. Childhood Obesity in North Yorkshire and York, Results from the collection of height 
and weight measurements in Year 6 and Reception children 2007/08

P
age 52



9.2%

6.8%

9.1%
8.4%

9.9%

8.5%
8.2%

7.8%
8.2%

9.6%

6.0%

8.0%

10.0%

12.0%

P
er

ce
n
ta

g
e 

(%
)

NCMP, Children’s Services Locality / York / England 2006/7 – 2007/8 - Obesity in Reception Year

0.0%

2.0%

4.0%

City West City North East City South East York England

Comparision

P
er

ce
n
ta

g
e 

(%
)

2006/07 2007/08

Public Health Intelligence, NHS NYY 2009. Childhood Obesity in North Yorkshire and York, Results from the collection of 
height and weight measurements in Year 6 and Reception children 2007/08

P
age 53



NCMP, Children’s Services Locality / York / England. 2006/7 – 2007/8 Obesity in Year 6 

15.9%

14.2%

15.6%

17.5%17.7%

16.0%
16.6%16.5% 16.2%

18.3%

6.0%

8.0%

10.0%

12.0%

14.0%

16.0%

18.0%

20.0%

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

(%
)

0.0%

2.0%

4.0%

6.0%

City North East City South East City West York England

Comparison

2006/07 2007/08

Public Health Intelligence, NHS NYY 2009. Childhood Obesity in North Yorkshire and York, Results from the collection 
of height and weight measurements in Year 6 and Reception children 2007/08

P
age 54



10.0%

15.0%

20.0%

25.0%

P
er

ce
n
ta

g
e 

(%
) 
O

b
es

e

2006/07

2007/08

NCMP, School Cluster 2006/07 – 2007/08 Obesity in Year 6

0.0%

5.0%

Ca
nn

on
 Le

e
Ar

ch
 B
ish

op
s

Oa
kla

nd
s

Bu
rn
ho

lm
e

Al
l S

ain
ts

Ma
no

r
Hu

nti
ng

ton
Jo

se
ph

 R
ow

ntr
ee

Mi
llth

or
pe

Lo
wf

iel
d

Fu
lfo

rd

School Cluster Year 6

P
er

ce
n
ta

g
e 

(%
) 
O

b
es

e

Public Health Intelligence, NHS NYY 2009. Childhood Obesity in North Yorkshire and York, Results from the 
collection of height and weight measurements in Year 6 and Reception children 2007/08

P
age 55



4.0%

6.0%

8.0%

10.0%

12.0%

14.0%

P
er

ce
n

ta
g

e 
(%

) 
O

b
es

e

2006/07

2007/08

NCMP, School Cluster 2006/7 – 2007/8 Obesity in Reception Year

0.0%

2.0%

Oa
kla

nd
s

Bu
rnh

o lm
e

Ca
nn

on
 Le

e
Jo

sep
h  R

ow
ntr

e e
Arc

h B
ish

op
s

All
 S a

ints
Fu

lfo
rd

Mi
llth

orp
e

Lo
wfi

eld
Ma

no
r

Hu
nti

ng
ton

School Cluster Reception Year

P
er

ce
n

ta
g

e 
(%

) 
O

b
es

e

Public Health Intelligence, NHS NYY 2009. Childhood Obesity in North Yorkshire and York, Results from the collection of height 
and weight measurements in Year 6 and Reception children 2007/08

P
age 56



Year 6 Overweight or obese

Children’s Service 
Locality

Number 
Obese or 
Overweight No. Measured %

City North East 156 583 26.8

City South East 156 551 28.3

Reception Overweight or obese

Children’s Service 
Locality

Number 
Obese or 
Overweight No. Measured %

City North East 138 584 23.6

City South East 118 553 21.3

Children’s service localities level prevalence and total numbers – all children at risk of being overweight or obese

City South East 156 551 28.3

City West 165 512 32.2

Total

477
(Over 203)

(Obese 274) 1646 29.1

City South East 118 553 21.3

City West 108 468 23.1

Total

364 
(Over 233)
(Obese131) 1605 22.7

Coverage 
(Target is 85%)

Coverage 
(Target is 85%)

% 2006/07 % 2007/08

91.5% 91.9%

P
age 57



Healthy Weight, Healthy Lives Market Segmentation - York

Department of Health (2008) Healthy Weight, Healthy Lives Market Segmentation and mapping

P
age 58



Modelled Estimates of Families with Children Aged 2-10 in York National 
Sample

Dominant Cluster Number Percent Percent

1. Struggling parents lack knowledge and money 1,374 11% 13%

2. Young parents lack knowledge and parental skills 55 0.4% 11%

3. Affluent families but indulgent food 1,589 12% 13%

4. Living healthily 2,856 22% 21%

5. Strong family values but poor diet and activity 3,317 26% 27%

6. Plenty of exercise but too many bad foods 3,614 28% 15%

Total 12,805

Department of Health (2008) Healthy Weight, Healthy Lives Market Segmentation and mapping

P
age 59



Thank You

P
age 60



Annex C 

L / Doc / Wordoc / SAL / Liz / Oaklands School Sports Partnership 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

EBOR SCHOOL 
SPORTS 

PARTNERSHIP 
PDM Andy Pope 

York High school – Specialist 
Sports College 

APPLEFIELDS 
SSCO Val French 

YORK HIGH SCHOOL 
SSCO Chris Buckely 

MILLTHORPE 
SCHOOL 

SSCO Mike Boothman YORK HIGH 
SCHOOL 

SSCO Helen Shiletto 

MANOR SCHOOL 
SSCO Mike Kilmartin 

ALL SAINTS SCHOOL 
SSCO Val French 

English 
Martyrs RC 
Primary 

Our Lady’s 
RC Primary 

St Aelreds 
RC Primary 

St Wilfreds 
RC Primary 

 

Poppleton 
Ousebank 
Primary 

St Barnabas 
CE Primary 

St Paul’s 
CE Primary 

Carr 
Infants 
School 
 

Carr 
Junior 
School 

Hob Moor 
Primary 

Poppleton Road 
Primary 

Copmanthorpe 
Primary 

Acomb 
Primary 

Lime 
Trees 

Danesgate 
Pupil Support 

Centre 

Bridge 
Centre 

(Pupil 
Support) 

Hob Moor 
Oaks 

Applefields PLT 

St Marys CE 
Primary Woodthorpe 

Primary 

Rufforth 
Primary 

Westfield 
Primary 

St Georges RC 
Primary 

Archbishop 
York CE 
Primary 

Bishopthorpe 
Infant 

Knavesmire 
Primary 

Scarcroft 
Primary 

Dringhouses 
 

P
age 61



P
age 62

T
his page is intentionally left blank



Annex D 

PE Provision Information 
 

Information on the impact that PE provision has on childhood 
obesity 

 
 

1. There has been an increase in % of children and young people doing 2 
hours of PE from 2008 (84%) to 2009 (87%) by 3%. From 2006(79%) – 
2008(94%) there was an increase of 15% in the number of children doing 
2 hours of PE and school sport per week; Figure 1 of this annex shows 
trends within the city with relation to a variety of school sport indicators 

 
2. Currently 44% of children participate in 3 hours high quality PE and school 

sport.  
 
3. There has been a shift in national priorities from only 2 hours within and 

beyond the curriculum towards the 5 hour offer, which includes 2 hours 
curriculum and 3 hours of extended school and community provision. This 
move towards five hours of PE and school sport is also moving more 
towards World Health recommendations that children are active for an 
hour each day. 

 
4. It is worth remembering that PE is Physical Education and part of the 

curriculum and not pure sport. Therefore some lessons may not require 
physical participation and the intensity of physical activities is lower when 
children and young people are learning new skills. Physical activity levels 
are then unable to be assured to contribute towards the required exertion 
levels and time requirements to contribute towards weight loss in children. 
However PE does contribute towards the societal expectation that being 
physically active is part of life and that exposure to a variety of sports in 
school increases the likelihood of an individual child finding a sport or 
physical activity that they enjoy.  

 
5. Curriculum PE is in place for educational purposes and not to address 

obesity in children. 
 
6. Since 2005 there has been a steady increase in number of minutes offered 

for curriculum PE by 14.5 minutes. Within schools there has been a steady 
increase in the number of activities offered by nearly five activities per year 
on average per school. The types of activities included into school 
timetables has seen children be involved in deciding what activities they 
would like to try. School PE is now more of a mixture of traditional and non 
traditional sports and physical activities. Increasing the variety offered 
means a broader exposure rate to children and increase in the likelihood 
of continued or additional participation in a new chosen sport. For example 
dance and martial arts have seen a great rise in the number of after school 
clubs and participation rates in children as a result of the work of the two 
School Sports Partnerships. 

 

Page 63



Annex D 

7. Voluntary club sector links to schools have also increased from 5 clubs in 
2006 to 13 clubs on average per school. This has meant that children and 
young people are more exposed to voluntary sport and it increases the 
likelihood that children will continue to be active into adult life as they are 
part of a community voluntary club, which tend to have role models 
participating throughout the club. The Sport and Active Leisure team is 
strongly supporting this aspect of school sport and has recently published 
guidance for schools and clubs to develop more sustainable links to each 
other. 

 
8. Data about children and young people’s participation at leisure centres is 

currently unavailable. This data is not able to be extrapolated from user 
numbers in CYC facilities and is also not available from the private leisure 
providers in the city. However, since the launch of free swimming for 
Under 16’s there is data in the sign up rate and also participation rates for 
2009; Figures 2, 3 and 4 of this annex show some basic figures and 
information. In summary there are 11,141 number of children and young 
people who have signed up for a free swimming card. 3880 is number of 
children from identified York postcodes who are in a NHS defined area 
that requires obesity management programmes. The data is unable to 
show how many children regularly use their card (i.e. every week) so the 
data is unable to show any contribution towards reducing childhood 
obesity levels. Information collected doesn’t monitor the health status of 
children so there is no measure of whether an improvement in health is 
required. One positive element the data reveals is that 11 year olds have 
the highest sign up and participation rate for free swimming from all U16 
age groups. 

Page 64



Annex D 

 

Figure 1  

Trends of the city with relation to a variety of school sport indicators 
 
 

York PESSYP1 2008/09 

Jorvik Jorvik 
2007 

Jorvik Jorvik Ebor Ebor Ebor Ebor 
2008 

Ebor 2006 2007 2008 2009 

2006 2008 2009 2005 2006 2007 2009 York York York York 

Total PE Curriculum Minutes 104 113 115 116 105 107 118 121 123 105 115 118 119.5 

% of 5-16 year olds doing 2 
hours High Quality PE within 
and beyond curriculum (PSA 
Target) 

69% 90% 93% n/a 70% 72% 90% 95% n/a 71% 90% 94% n/a 

% of 5 - 16 year olds doing 2 
hours HQ PE 

      83%         91%     84% 87% 

% of 5 -16 year olds doing 3 
hours HQ PE and school sport 

      44%         46%       46% 

% of 5 - 19 year olds doing 3 
hours HQ PE and school sport 

      42%         45%       44% 

% Pupils (5 - 16 yr old) involved 
in intra school competition 

68% 69% 73% 86% 14% 52% 44% 50% 55% 60% 56.50% 61.50% 70.50% 

% Pupils (5 - 19 yr old) involved 
in intra school competition 

      82%         54%       68% 

% Pupils (7-16 yr old) involved 
regular intra school competition 

      24%         24%       24% 

% Pupils (7-19 yr old) involved 
regular intra school competition 

      24%         23%       23.50% 

% Hosting a sports day 100% 100% 100% 100%   93% 94% 94% 100% 97% 97% 97% 100% 

% Pupils (5-16 yr old) involved 
in inter school competition 

35% 37% 45% 50% 38% 42% 42% 32% 34% 39% 39.50% 38.50% 42% 

% Pupils (5-19 yr old) involved 
in inter  school competition 

      47%         33%       40% 

% Pupils (7-16 yr old) involved 
in regular inter school 
competition 

      20%         17%       18.50% 

% Pupils (7-19 yr old) involved 
in regular inter school 
competition 

      19%         17%       18% 

Number of activities offered to 
pupils (average) 

14.69 17.82 18.54 19.77 16.7 15.5 16.7 18.2 20.06 15.1 17.26 18.35 19.92 

Number of school club links 
(average) 

5.79 10.5 12 12.5 5.47 5.76 7.01 13.3 13.55 5.77 8.79 12.67 13 

% Pupils participate in a sport, 
dance or multiskill club with links 
to school (6 - 16 yr old) 

24% 27% 28% 41% 20% 37% 24% 37% 44% 31% 25.50% 32.50% 42.50% 

% Pupils participate in a sport, 
dance or multiskill club with links 
to school (6 - 19 yr old) 

      39%         42%       40.50% 

% Registered as gifted and 
talented (10 - 16 yr old) 

6% 6% 9% 12% 6% 6% 7% 9% 9% 6% 6.50% 9% 10.50% 

% Registered as Gifted and 
Talented (10 - 19 yr old) 

      11%         9%       10% 

% Involved in sports 
volunteering and leadership (5 - 
19 yr old) 

  11% 13% 22%     6% 9% 16%         

% Involved in sports 
volunteering and leadership ( 7 - 
19 yr old) 

4%         6%       5%       

% Involved in sports 
volunteering and leadership (14 
- 19 yr old) 

        13%           8.50% 11% 19% 

 

                                                 
1 Physical Education Sport Strategy for Young People 

Page 65



Annex D 

Figure 2 

Free Swimming Programme Data January 2009 – December 2009 
Uptake by age group of U16 free swimming 

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

Total

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

 
  0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16Grand Total 
Total 270 247 330 453 591 776 843 831 890 874 9341005 886 805 680 518 208 11141 

 

Figure 3 

Free U16 uptake for Clifton postcode – identified as a high need for 
obesity intervention 
Postcode Sector 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 1415 16Grand Total
YO30 1    1              1          3
YO30 1 3 3 5 6 3 7 18 12 9 10 7 5 8 9 6 5 2 118
YO30 2 1 1 2 1 3 1 4 1 3 2 1 2  22
YO30 4 1 7 4 8 14 13 17 22 18 16 24 11 13 17 9 6 4 204
YO30 5 12 14 18 19 23 29 43 31 32 32 53 43 30 26 2215 7 449
YO30 6 12 13 11 28 23 36 32 32 45 42 53 59 58 44 7242 20 622
YO30 7 2 3 2 5 8 6 3 7 4 8 3 7 3 6 2 69
YO305FX          1        1
YO305QQ    1              1
YO305QX             1     1
YO305RT       1           1
YO305XQ      1            1
YO306BA         1         1
YO306JZ          1        1
YO307DQ       1           1
YO309HG               1   1
Grand Total 32 41 39 66 70 9811710511410714512511710011770 33 1496
 

Page 66



Annex D 

Figure 4 

Free U16 uptake for Westfield postcode – identified as a high need for 
obesity intervention 
Postcode Sector 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 141516 Grand Total 
YO24 1 10 4 10 20 20 24 31 27 31 43 36 32 37 31 15 7 6 384
YO24 2 16 16 15 24 22 36 38 55 47 32 51 60 41 42 422613 576
YO24 3 20 22 31 29 42 58 57 60 73 70 76 74 88 81 584724 910
YO24 4 14 12 21 16 35 32 37 37 35 38 36 43 35 28 2112 9 461
YO24 5           1  1 2              1 5
YO241BD             1  1  1            3
YO241DP                       1           1
YO241EW         1                        1
YO241JJ             1          1        2
YO241LN                       1           1
YO241NB                         1        1
YO242LP                           1      1
YO242PB     1                  1        2
YO242PD           1                      1
YO242PN         1              1        2
YO242PP     1                            1
YO242TJ             1                    1
YO242TU         1                        1
YO243AE                             1    1
YO243AG       1                          1
YO243AZ                 1                1
YO243DD                     1            1
YO243EB           1                      1
YO243EE           1                      1
YO243GH                           1      1
YO243HL                           1      1
YO243NF                         1        1
YO244AY           1                      1
YO244EU                             1    1
YO244HA           1                      1
YO244HD               1                  1
YO244HH               1                  1
YO244HR                         1        1
YO244JB                         1        1
YO244JD                 1      1    1  3
YO244LZ 1            1 1    1           4
YO244RD   1                              1
YO244SF         1                        1
YO247EP                               1  1
YO24V 3                 1                1
YO30 1    1              1           3
Grand Total 62 55 79 91123156166183193183201213 2091851389453 2384
 

Page 67



Page 68

This page is intentionally left blank



Annex E 

Briefing note to the Childhood Obesity Scrutiny Review on the School Meals 
Service 
 
Statistics on School Meal Uptake annually since 2003 and corresponding 
prices 

Tables A, B & C are attached at Annex E1 

Appendix A & B are at Annex E2 to this report 

1. A list of York’s school meals arrangements is given in Table A.  Table B 
shows total take up and selling prices for schools in the local-authority 
procured catering contract with North Yorkshire County Caterers.  Schools are 
not identified in take up information released into the public domain because 
of commercial confidentiality and also because reasons for varying take up 
are wide ranging.  These can include: 

§ school lunch clubs which do not always allow pupils time for a school meal 

§ some schools require payment a term or half a term in advance to reduce 
time and expense of cash collection 

§ some schools insist paying pupils have a school meal every day or not at 
all 

§ whether or not pupils like what is on the menu – popularity of a dish can 
vary greatly from school to school  

§ a cook’s aptitude for producing appealing meals (cooks pay is banded 
according to the number of meals they prepare, and their hours generally 
reduce if take up falls)  

§ dining room capacity - some headteachers are able to make lunchtime a 
social occasion, learning to eat tidily at a table with cutlery and an 
opportunity to try different foods; others have to get pupils in and out as 
quickly as possible  

§ the importance a headteacher places on having a school lunch – some 
schools offer staff a free lunch when they eat with the pupils  

§ sometimes take up is low for no discernable reason 

§ figures are not adjusted to take into account exclusion or any other type of 
absence such as study leave, which obviously reduces secondary school 
take-up, or phased starts in Nursery/Reception classes.  

2. Therefore the average for all contract schools has been given for each year, 
together with the range of take up.  This includes the Free School Meal take-
up from each January school census snapshot, for which schools are 
allocated funding based on the number of their pupils who have successfully 
applied for Free School Meals.  However this funding is not ring-fenced and 
therefore no financial incentive for schools to ensure the free school meals 
are actually taken.  

3. Schools outside the contract have only reported figures to the LA since 
2007/08, and these are summarized at Table C by financial year, as reported 

Page 69



Annex E 

to the Schools Food Trust.  

The typical menu and nutritional content of such school meals annually since 
2003. 

4. Legislation required nutritional standards and analysis from September 2008 
for primary schools and September 2009 for secondary schools.  Prior to 
2008, school menus followed the School Food Trust’s Food-Based Standards, 
following interim standards from September 2006, fully implemented 
September 2007 (Appendix A).  These which required that protein, fruit and 
vegetables were served every day, limited the amount of fat used and for 
meals to be low sugar and low sodium.  From approximately 2003 onwards, 
prior to the implementation of the Food-Based Standards and Jamie Oliver’s 
campaign, North Yorkshire County Caterers had already limited the amount of 
processed foods, removing items such as turkey twizzlers and turkey 
dinosaurs from their menus.   

 
5. North Yorkshire County Caterers work with a nutritionist who advises on menu 

compilation and can suggest particular foods to boost certain nutrients, for 
instance including edamame beans to boost zinc levels.  NYCC’s nutritional 
analysis generated by their ‘Saffron’ industry database and menus from 
Autumn term 2009 are attached (Appendix B).  To meet this analysis of 
planned provision in line with nutritional standards, correct age-appropriate 
portion sizes must be adhered to, which is the cooks’ responsibility.  The CYC 
School Catering Monitoring Officer monitors school meals provision in all 
catering contract schools, PFI schools and other schools who choose to buy-
in the monitoring service.  Portion size and menu adherence are two of the 
key criteria checked.  The contractor for the PFI schools also uses the same 
system for their nutritional analysis.   

 
6. The meals are two courses.  Desserts have changed from stodgy puddings to 

fruit-based desserts.  Fresh fruit is also offered every day.  All the recipes 
have been re-developed to lower fat and sugar content – eg using honey and 
molasses as sweeteners, ‘concealing’ fruit such as the pears in Chocolate 
Fudge Cake. 

 
7. Intermittent packed lunches provided by the contractor (for school visits etc) 

would aim to meet the food-based standards. It is unlikely a portable packed 
lunch could meet all the nutritional guidelines owing to the relatively high 
carbohydrate content of sandwiches and their limitations in providing sufficient 
protein, for example.  Each school sets their own guidelines on what pupils 
can or cannot bring in their lunchboxes.  

 
Additional information 
 
8. The Client Catering Manager and Monitoring Officer take part in the Healthy 

Schools Group Quality Assurance Group and advise on the food element 
when assessing schools’ applications for Healthy Schools Status.  

Page 70



Annex E1

Table A

City of York - School Meals arrangements as at January 2010 
Table A

Primary and Secondary Schools
School Meal 
arrangements Secondary Schools

School Meal 
arrangements

Acomb Primary Contract All Saints RC Contract
Applefields School Contract Archbishop Holgate's CE SLA
Archbishop of York's CE Junior Contract Burnholme Community College Own
Badger Hill Primary Contract Canon Lee Contract
Bishopthorpe Infant Contract Fulford SLA
Burton Green Primary Contract Huntington SLA
Carr Infant Contract Joseph Rowntree SLA
Carr Junior Contract Manor Contract
Clifton Green Primary Contract Millthorpe Contract
Clifton Without Junior Contract York High Contract
Copmanthorpe Primary Contract
Derwent Infant Contract Summary for secondary schools
Derwent Junior Contract No in authority-procured catering contract 5
Dringhouses Primary Contract No with Service Level Agreement* 4
Dunnington CE Primary Contract Own arrangments (in house) 1
Elvington CE Primary Contract Total 10
English Martyrs' RC Primary Contract
Fishergate Primary Contract Notes
Haxby Road Primary Dolce
Headlands Primary Contract 1  Indicated joining the Catering Contract 2010-2015
Hempland Primary Contract 2 Indicated leaving Catering Contract July 2010
Heworth CE Primary Contract
Hob Moor Oaks PFI Chartwells
Hob Moor Primary PFI Chartwells
Huntington Primary Dolce
Knavesmire Primary Contract
Lakeside Primary Contract
Lord Deramore's Primary Contract
Naburn CE Primary Contract
New Earswick Primary SLA
Osbaldwick Primary Contract
Our Lady's RC Primary Contract
Park Grove Primary Contract
Poppleton Ousebank Primary Contract
Poppleton Road Primary Contract
Ralph Butterfield Primary Own
Rawcliffe Infant Contract
Robert Wilkinson Primary Own
Rufforth Primary Contract
Scarcroft Primary Contract
Skelton Primary Contract
St Aelred's RC Primary Contract
St Barnabas' CE Primary PFI Chartwells
St George's RC Primary Contract
St Lawrence's CE Primary Contract
St Mary's CE Primary Contract
St Oswald's CE Primary PFI Chartwells
St Paul's CE Primary Contract
St Wilfrid's RC Primary Contract
St. Paul's Nursery Contract
Stockton on the Forest Primary Contract
Tang Hall Primary Contract
Westfield Primary SLA
Wheldrake CE Primary Contract
Wigginton Primary Contract
Woodthorpe Primary SLA 1
Yearsley Grove Primary SLA

Primary School Summary
Authority-procured school catering contract 45
Service Level Agreement* 4
Private Finance Initiative Schools with 
catering sub-contracted to Chartwells by 
Sewells, the PFI contractor 4
Other contractor procured direct by school 2
Own arrangments (in house) 2
Total 57

Contract = Authority-procured contract currently with North 
Yorkshire County Caterers

SLA = Service Level Agreement arranged by a school with North 
Yorkshire County Council direct.  Each school is responsible for 
any profit or loss that their school meals service makes.   This 
provides a financial incentive for schools with SLAs to encourage 
take up of pupil paid, pupil free and staff paid meals to try to 
ensure the service at least breaks even.  Whilst most SLA schools 
take up achieves the local authority's average or above, this is not 
the case for all of them.  Schools with own in-house provision 
achieved above the 2008/09 LA average of 32.9% for primary and 
special schools, 29.7% secondary schools. 

Page 71



Table B showing Contract Pupil take up and Free School Meals Eligibility 2003 - 2009 TABLES B & C

Academic Year

Criteria

Primary and 
Special Schools 
and St Paul's 
Nursery

Secondary 
Schools

Primary and 
Special Schools 
and St Paul's 
Nursery

Secondary 
Schools

Primary and 
Special Schools 
and St Paul's 
Nursery

Secondary 
Schools

Primary and 
Special Schools 
and St Paul's 
Nursery

Secondary 
Schools

Primary and 
Special Schools 
and St Paul's 
Nursery

Secondary 
Schools

Primary and 
Special Schools 
and St Paul's 
Nursery

Secondary 
Schools

Selling price / Secondary Notional 
Free Meal Allowance

£1.42 £1.56 £1.52 £1.61 £1.60 £1.70 £1.75 £1.87 £1.90 £2.05 £2.05 £2.15

Pupil take up 36% 31% 34% 33% 33% 30% 35% 26% 34% 26% 34% 28%

Take Up Range in schools 19% - 64% - 16%-66% - 20%-63% - 16%-62% 19%-36% 13%-59% 15%-37% 17%-64% 18%-38%

FSM Take up (Jan census) - all sch - - 85% 75% 81% 69% 77% 68% 77% 79% 78% 71%

FSM Take Up Range - all schools - - 30%-100% 58%-98% 50%-100% 50%-97% 40%-100% 43%-100% 25%-100% 48%-98% 25%-100% 54%-100%

Notes
2009/10 Selling prices:  £2.15 primary and special; £2.30 Secondary
Secondary School Take Up is based on cash taken divided by the Secondary Notional Free School Meal Allowance for that year. This includes paying adults.  There is anecdotal evidence that more pupils buy food than this but spend less.
At end of 2005/06 a secondary school with high take up left contract

Table C showing take up information for schools outside the contract - by financial  year as reported to the Schools Food Trust 

Criteria
Primary/Special 

Schools
Secondary 
Schools

Primary/Special 
Schools

Secondary 
Schools

No of schools
11 5 11 5

Pupil take up 34% 32% 31% 32%

2007/08 2008/09

2007/08 2008/092003/04 2004/05 2005/06 2006/07

P
age 72



Appendix A Annex E2

Page 73



Appendix A Annex E2

Page 74



Appendix A Annex E2

Page 75



Appendix A Annex E2

Page 76



Annex E2

Page 77



Annex E2

Page 78



Annex E2

Page 79



Annex E2

Page 80



Annex E2

Page 81



Annex E2

Page 82



Annex E2

Page 83



Annex E2

Page 84



Annex F 

BRIEFING PAPER 
 
1ST MARCH 2010 CHILD OBSESITY 
How day nurseries in York contribute to Healthy Food and Exercise 
 
Background information 
 
There are currently 43 day nurseries operating across the city. Most are 
operated by private providers, others are operated under voluntary 
management arrangements and there is one that is operating under the 
extended school legislation and is governed under the school governance.  All 
of the nurseries are registered under Ofsted for full day-care.  Ofsted do not 
inspect against Healthy Eating in nurseries, however recently they have 
shown interest and asked questions around this area. 
 
Method used for evidence gathering  
 
The Early Years and Children’s Centre Service undertook a telephone 
questionnaire to establish a greater understanding of the way in which the 
different daycare settings offer meals and outdoor opportunities for children 
who attend their provision. An analysis was undertaken to establish the ways 
in which healthy eating and physical exercise was offered across each of the 
day-care settings. In total 42 settings made themselves available to answer 
the nine questions. All of the questions were fully answered and some offered 
additional comments. These are included in this briefing paper. Anonymity for 
the settings was agreed in order that they could be frank and open. 
 
 The analysis 
 
Of the 42 nurseries that replied, 37 provided hot meals; the remainder asked 
families to provide packed lunches for their children although they were 
prepared to heat up food such as soup. Of the 37 nurseries most had 
cooks/chefs who held cooking qualifications that included child nutrition, a 
small minority did not employ cooks and nursery staff carried out this task.  
Over 95 % of the nurseries had Healthy Eating policies, these policies made 
reference to monitoring levels of sugar, salt and fat. However they also 
showed that nursery providers understood the necessity of providing young 
children with sufficient calories during the day to meet their requirements. 
Many of the Healthy Eating policies showed that the majority of food cooked 
on the premises, was 'cooked from scratch' and statements included 
reference to not providing pre-prepared food from cash and carry outlets. 
Where hot food was offered on a campus site, for example, a school site, a 
central canteen provided meals for the nurseries.  
About 60 % of nurseries answered that most of their food was locally sourced 
where possible. There were also references to the importance of mealtimes 
being 'social events' where children were served meals at tables with 
tablecloths and flowers in the centre of the table and staff sitting and 
interacting with the children. The requirements of individual children were also 
catered for, these could include reference to allergies or parental beliefs or 
cultural needs. 

Page 85



Annex F 

 All nurseries provide snacks during the day, which include fresh fruit, toast, 
scones, teacakes, home made grenola bars. In some nurseries these are 
offered at set times and in others, there is a café-bar arrangements so that the 
children can help themselves whenever they feel hungry. 
  
Recently the government has altered advice about proving semi-skimmed 
milk for children over 2 years of age. Only 50 % of nurseries had received this 
advice, mostly through the milk provider, the advice had not come down from 
the Department of Health to Early Years Departments in Local Authorities. 
 
 All nurseries replied that the children were currently or in the immediate 
future, planting and growing food. Some nurseries have taken advantage of a 
grant known as Quality and Access Capital to provide or enhance growing 
areas such as raised beds to cultivate a wide variety of crops. These crops 
include peas, beans, potatoes, carrots, sweet corn, strawberries and butternut 
squash (with varying success). These crops were harvested and children 
helped to prepare the vegetables before eating them.  
Also over 60% of nurseries have areas set aside for 'kitchen gardens' One 
nursery has chickens in the outside area and others are investigating this 
opportunity.  
 
All children have the opportunity to play outside on a daily basis and are 
encouraged by staff to do so. They also have quiet spaces or rooms in which 
they can rest or sleep.    
 
Conclusion 
 
This full survey shows that in the City of York, the promotion of healthy 
lifestyles for children is taken seriously by the day nurseries. 
This picture compares well to some other local authority areas where similar 
surveys have shown a differing picture. 
The survey also shows that the provision of main meals., lunch and tea varies 
considerably in the way in which they are offered. Although menus varied 
there was insufficient time in this exercise to go into greater detail. Parents 
are given information about meal times and all are required by Ofsted to 
provide parents with copies of the menus as part of their registration 
requirements. 
One nursery has received a Gold Award from the soil association that has 
required them to evidence a high level of food cooked from scratch and food 
from local organically grown sources.  
The survey does not highlight the complexity faced by cooks in the demands 
of offering an increasing demand for catering for children who have allergies.  
 
Further reading.  
Research report on nursery food. www.soilassociation.org link Georgie 
Porgie Pudding and Pie. Please note this is a 120 page document and 
has been funded with links to a commercial food company providing 
organic baby food. However it highlights the importance of good food in 
full day-care settings.    
 

Page 86



Fat and getting fatterFat and getting fatter

P
age 87



Why Why 

The changing pictureThe changing picture
The paradox of time. The paradox of time. 
The triple whammy.The triple whammy.
The fear factor.The fear factor.
Sale of playing fields.Sale of playing fields.
Lack of ethical professional sports.Lack of ethical professional sports.
The world virtual.The world virtual.
Fast food.Fast food.

P
age 88



The changing pictureThe changing picture

nn Children and young people are seen as a Children and young people are seen as a 
legitimate market.legitimate market.

nn Family structures and lifestyles very Family structures and lifestyles very 
different.different.different.different.

nn Messages about bodiesMessages about bodies
nn Lazy parents lazy childrenLazy parents lazy children

P
age 89



Paradox of timeParadox of time

nn The more time saving appliances, dish The more time saving appliances, dish 
washer, hoover, microwave…washer, hoover, microwave…

nn The less time we all have.The less time we all have.
Must not waste timeMust not waste timenn Must not waste timeMust not waste time

nn But how do we use time ?But how do we use time ?

P
age 90



The triple whammyThe triple whammy

nn Our media chums would have us believe Our media chums would have us believe 
that on every street corner we can find a that on every street corner we can find a 
group of feckless hoodies, with predatory group of feckless hoodies, with predatory 
pedophiles lurking in the shadows protected pedophiles lurking in the shadows protected pedophiles lurking in the shadows protected pedophiles lurking in the shadows protected 
by anonymous CCTV voyeurs’. by anonymous CCTV voyeurs’. 

P
age 91



Fear factorFear factor

nn Six pack, size 10, hair gel, body smellSix pack, size 10, hair gel, body smell
nn Odd relationships with foodOdd relationships with food
nn Celebrity, image, distorted realityCelebrity, image, distorted reality
nn X factor and ridiculeX factor and ridicule
nn less tolerance,less tolerance,
nn cyber bullying.     cyber bullying.     

P
age 92



Competition and sportCompetition and sport

nn Sale of playing fieldsSale of playing fields
nn Teachers good willTeachers good will
nn Anti competitionAnti competition
nn Professional sport lacks ethical standardsProfessional sport lacks ethical standards
nn Play to a level or not at all Play to a level or not at all 

P
age 93



The virtual worldThe virtual world

nn Computer screensComputer screens
nn FacebookFacebook
nn Pretending is easierPretending is easier

P
age 94



Fast food fast livngFast food fast livng

nn Fast foodFast food
nn TV dinnersTV dinners
nn From harvest to plate From harvest to plate 
nn Patience a lost art,Patience a lost art,
nn immediate gratification, immediate gratification, 

P
age 95



A gap has immergedA gap has immerged
between those that are active and thought of as attractive between those that are active and thought of as attractive 
and those perceived less able, and those perceived less able, 
result comfort in food and weight problems.result comfort in food and weight problems.result comfort in food and weight problems.result comfort in food and weight problems.

P
age 96



What might we doWhat might we do

Increase opportunities to Increase opportunities to 
be active without being be active without being 
ridicule.ridicule.

Encourage education Encourage education 
leaders that competition leaders that competition 
with humility is as with humility is as 
important as academic important as academic important as academic important as academic 
achievements achievements 

Open our school kitchens Open our school kitchens 
on the weekend for a on the weekend for a 
community café. Healthy community café. Healthy 
cheap food, lesson in cheap food, lesson in 
cooking for the familycooking for the family

Recognise our Recognise our 
community champions community champions 
and grow this army of and grow this army of 
support starssupport stars

P
age 97



P
age 98

T
his page is intentionally left blank



Annex H

NYY Adult Obesity Estimates

England
2003-05 2007

Obese (BMI >30) 22.8% 24.0%
Morbidly Obese (BMI >40) 1.9% 1.8%

NYY 2003-05 (split by district)
NYY Craven Hambleton Harrogate Richmondshire Ryedale Scarborough Selby York

Obese (BMI >30) 21.9% 22.2% 23.7% 21.5% 28.5% 26.1% 24.1% 25.0% 22.2%
Morbidly Obese (BMI >40) 1.8% 1.9% 2.0% 1.8% 2.4% 2.2% 2.0% 2.1% 1.9%

NYY 2007 (split by district)
NYY Craven Hambleton Harrogate Richmondshire Ryedale Scarborough Selby York

Obese (BMI >30) 23.1% 23.4% 24.9% 22.6% 30.0% 27.5% 25.4% 26.3% 23.4%
Morbidly Obese (BMI >40) 1.7% 1.8% 1.9% 1.7% 2.3% 2.1% 1.9% 2.0% 1.8%

POPULATIONS
NYY Craven Hambleton Harrogate Richmondshire Ryedale Scarborough Selby York

Registered Population (aged 16+) 666,510 49,068 70,744 132,334 35,087 41,153 99,465 59,751 178,908

Resident Population (aged 16+) * 652,041 46,315 71,465 130,350 41,821 44,091 90,260 65,311 162,428

* Sum of 5 yr age groups, 80% of group 15-19 used in calculation

NYY NUMBERS (Registered)
NYY Craven Hambleton Harrogate Richmondshire Ryedale Scarborough Selby York

Obese (BMI >30) 163,661 11,466 17,649 29,949 10,526 11,306 25,233 15,724 41,808
Morbidly Obese (BMI >40) 12,275 860 1,324 2,246 789 848 1,892 1,179 3,136

NYY NUMBERS (Resident)
NYY Craven Hambleton Harrogate Richmondshire Ryedale Scarborough Selby York

Obese (BMI >30) 160,853 10,823 17,829 29,500 12,546 12,113 22,898 17,187 37,957
Morbidly Obese (BMI >40) 12,064 812 1,337 2,213 941 909 1,717 1,289 2,847

Data Source: 2003-05 synthetic estimates, 2007 HSE, Exeter registered population May 2009, ONS Mid-year estimates resident population 2007
ESTIMATES

P
age 99



P
age 100

T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	
	1 Declarations of Interest
	2 Minutes
	4 Work Plan 2010
	7 Information Report on Women's Low Secure Unit, Clifton
	8 Interim Report of the Childhood Obesity Task Group
	Annex A - List of documents received
	Annex B - SCRUTINY COMMITTEE PRESENTATION DEC 2009
	Annex C - School Clusters
	Annex D - PE Provision
	Annex E - Briefing note on School Meals
	Annex E1 - Tables A-C for the briefing note on school meals
	Annex E2 - Appendices A and B for the briefing note on school meals
	Annex F - Briefing Paper - Eating in Nurseries
	Annex G - Presentation from Youth Service
	Annex H - Adult Obesity Synthetic Data


